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          1  PUBLIC SAFETY AND PUBLIC HOUSING

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Welcome to

          3  today's joint hearing of the Committee on Public

          4  Safety, and the Subcommittee on Public Housing, in

          5  which we'll explore the general issues regarding

          6  safety in public housing development; recently

          7  implemented NYPD initiatives, and the Housing

          8  Bureau's response to the many major incidents that

          9  have occurred in and around public housing

         10  developments in recent months.

         11                 I'd like to acknowledge and thank

         12  Councilwoman Rosie Mendez, the Chair of our

         13  Subcommittee on Public Housing, for all the work she

         14  and her staff have done on this very important

         15  issue. The importance of addressing safety and

         16  quality of life issues in public housing

         17  developments cannot be overstated. This past month

         18  alone  --  can we keep it down in the back, please?

         19  This past month alone, there have been ten major

         20  incidents in public housing developments, including

         21  an incident on October 26th, during which a police

         22  officer was wounded by gunfire while preventing the

         23  likely fatal shooting of another man in the Walt

         24  Whitman Housing in Brooklyn.

         25                 Actually, I'm going to go through
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          2  some of the incidents, since my staff, led by Liz

          3  Dubin and Jeannine, have done such a nice job

          4  putting them together.  And I'm sure your staff

          5  probably had something to do with this also.

          6                 October 26th, as I said, just last

          7  month, 35-year-old man fatally stabbed in the chest

          8  in the Bayview Houses in Brooklyn.

          9                 Also on October 26th, the Sergeant

         10  was wounded  -- well actually, a Sergeant wounded a

         11  17-year-old, who had held up a 26-year-old man at

         12  gunpoint outside of the Walt Whitman Houses.

         13                 October 23, the delivery man was

         14  stabbed and robbed while he was delivering food into

         15  Ravenswood Houses, Queens, which actually Eric Gioia

         16  was downstairs.  We were just discussing this. This

         17  is one block outside my district.  This one happened

         18  to be filmed by cameras in the development, and we

         19  will get into that later.  But that's one of the

         20  reasons why these cameras are so important.  Because

         21  of that film, the suspect turned himself in.

         22                 October 22nd, an argument among a

         23  group of men at the Melrose Houses resulted in

         24  gunfire.  Wounded a 26-year-old man.

         25                 Also on October 22nd, a 42-year-old
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          2  man was knifed in the arm and the chest by two

          3  assailants in the Moore Houses in the Mott Haven

          4  section of the Bronx.

          5                 October 22nd, police responding to a

          6  shooting, a call of a shooting, an NYPD Sergeant

          7  wounded a 15-year-old boy in a dimly lit interior

          8  hallway, which is currently under investigation.

          9                 Some of these, obviously, involve

         10  heroic police officers.  Some have raised concerns,

         11  and we'll get into that.

         12                 October 21st, two men hospitalized

         13  after a shooting in the courtyard of the LaGuardia

         14  Houses on the Lower East Side.

         15                 October 17th, the decomposed bodies

         16  of a 50-year-old woman and her nine-year-old

         17  daughter, both showed signs of blunt trauma, were

         18  found in bedrooms in the Frederick Douglas Houses.

         19                 October 14th, a 19-year-old woman who

         20  was two months pregnant was found dead after being

         21  shot in a sixth floor apartment of the Taylor-Wythe

         22  Houses in Williamsburg.

         23                 And lastly,  --  this is just

         24  October, by the way. A 34-year-old off-duty City

         25  sanitation worker was  --  allegedly choked and
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          2  strangled a 27-year-old woman on Madison Avenue at

          3  the Taft Houses.

          4                 So again, this all happened in

          5  October, and that's why we're here today, to focus

          6  on what the NYPD is doing to combat this.

          7                 In 2003, the Housing Bureau began

          8  participating in the Police Department's Impact

          9  Program.  That's one of the things they're doing.

         10  And also, the Housing Bureau implemented the Bronx

         11  Restructuring Program in 2004.  These are things we

         12  learned about in our 2004 hearing we'd like updates

         13  on.  The Trespass Affidavit Program, through which

         14  the Housing Authority gave the NYPD permission to

         15  conduct vertical patrols, is another initiative.

         16  Obviously, there have been concerns raised about

         17  that one, but it's also been successful.  So we'll

         18  hear about that.

         19                 And finally, the VIPER Program, which

         20  is a video surveillance system which started in

         21  1997.  In 2004, there were 15 VIPER locations.  Over

         22  3,000 cameras.  And we're going to look into what's

         23  being done with that program.

         24                 Many of you know my position on

         25  cameras.  I fully support them.  And today we'll
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          2  discuss a resolution that I've introduced, calling

          3  on the President and Congress to allocate funding

          4  for video cameras at NYCHA developments.

          5                 So I look forward to hearing

          6  testimony on all of that.  And with that, I'd like

          7  to turn over the floor to Councilwoman Mendez, who

          8  is Chair of our Subcommittee on Public Housing, whom

          9  I'm honored to work with today.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Thank you very

         11  much, Chair Vallone.  Good morning.  I am

         12  Councilwoman Rosie Mendez, and I Chair the

         13  Subcommittee on Public Housing.  And as stated by

         14  Chair Vallone, today's oversight hearing is being

         15  held jointly by our two Committee and Subcommittee.

         16  And we'll review public safety issues in New York

         17  City Housing Authority developments, acronym known

         18  as NYCHA.

         19                 We will cover a variety of topics,

         20  such as Proposed Resolution Number 96-A, which seeks

         21  federal funding for video security systems in NYCHA

         22  developments; problematic and structural differences

         23  between Police Precincts and Police Service Areas;

         24  and the relationship between the Police and NYCHA

         25  residents.

                                                            9

          1  PUBLIC SAFETY AND PUBLIC HOUSING

          2                 Currently, at least 28 of the 344

          3  developments have some form of camera system.  The

          4  closed circuit TV or the VIPER system, which several

          5  of these have been funded by the City Council.  As a

          6  result of video surveillance, incidents of crime in

          7  these developments have been reduced.  Additionally,

          8  there have been times when violent crimes recorded

          9  on tape, as recently as was in Ravenswoods Houses.

         10  And therefore, the Police were able to solve these

         11  violent crimes more quickly.

         12                 At the same time, many of us in the

         13  City Council recognize and are very concerned, that

         14  along with video surveillance, we do not infringe on

         15  the residents' privacy and other Constitutional

         16  rights.  Council Member Vallone's resolution

         17  proposes that the federal government allocate

         18  funding for the purpose of installing, maintaining,

         19  and monitoring cameras in public housing

         20  developments.  I support said resolution.  And

         21  support the installation of video security systems

         22  only where the residents wish to have them.

         23                 NYCHA is the largest public housing

         24  authority in North America, with 344 developments,

         25  spread throughout New York City.  Nearly 415,000
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          2  authorized residents live in almost 180,000

          3  apartments.  As such, we must work together to

          4  reduce crime in order to keep residents safe.

          5                 Of course, safety concerns also

          6  involve keeping police officers safe, creating an

          7  amicable relationship between the Police and NYCHA

          8  residents, by making sure that residents, including

          9  the youth, are not targeted by the Police, and by

         10  reducing such incidents as the unfortunate shooting

         11  of Timothy Stansbury.

         12                 As many of you may recall, in January

         13  of 2004, Timothy, a 19- year old teenager, and two

         14  of his friends took a shortcut to a party by

         15  crossing from one building to another by an

         16  adjoining rooftop in the Bedford- Stuyvesant Housing

         17  Development in Brooklyn.  As Timothy, carrying only

         18  a stack of CDs, opened the roof door, he was fatally

         19  shot by a police officer.  Many believe that he

         20  incident could have been prevented if the Police

         21  were trained differently, and had known that such

         22  cross- overs, though unlawful, were routine by

         23  residents.  As a former resident of public housing,

         24  I can tell you I engaged in such unlawful practices

         25  during my youth.  Timothy Stansbury should have
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          2  walked away with a summons, and with his life.

          3                 I will tell you that many residents

          4  of public housing regard Police training as

          5  inadequate, and their tactics on NYCHA properties

          6  are frequently questioned and seen as excessive in

          7  relation to law enforcement practices on non- NYCHA

          8  properties.

          9                 I grew up in public housing, and

         10  considered a pre merger and post- merger forms of

         11  the Housing Police as an example of community

         12  policing.  I believe that partnerships between law

         13  enforcement and community residents are effective in

         14  reducing crimes and essential.  And only if  --  but

         15  only if properly funded and staffed, to enable the

         16  creation of those relationships.

         17                 Almost 40 percent of the NYCHA

         18  population consists of minors under the age of 21.

         19  And approximately 32.7 of minors under 18.   As

         20  such, it is crucial that the Police are properly

         21  trained, and they don't view NYCHA youth and other

         22  NYCHA residents as criminals or potential criminals

         23  simply because of where they live.

         24                 In this vein, the Committee and the

         25  Subcommittees are interested in an update on the use
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          2  of surveillance cameras in NYCHA developments.  The

          3  current status of the NYPD's precincts and PSAs that

          4  cover NYCHA developments.  The relationship between

          5  the Police and NYCHA residents.  As well as the

          6  relationship between NYCHA and the NYPD.  And the

          7  allocation of resources, capital and personnel,

          8  between said agencies.

          9                 I would like to thank NYCHA, the

         10  NYPD, the tenants, advocates, for testifying today,

         11  and I look forward to a productive hearing on this

         12  important issue.  Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you

         14  Councilwoman Mendez. I'd like to also introduce the

         15  Council Members that we have with us today.  Council

         16  Member Joe Addabbo and Council Member Melissa Mark

         17  Viverito are here.  And I know a few others just

         18  stepped out.  Dan Garodnick and some others who have

         19  other meetings going on at the same time and will be

         20  coming back very soon.

         21                 So now I'd like to welcome Chief

         22  Joanne Jaffe, Chief of Housing for the New York City

         23  Police Department, who is joined by Douglas Apple,

         24  the General Manager of the New York City Housing

         25  Authority.  And various others who I'm sure she'll
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          2  introduce.  We look forward to your testimony.  I

          3  know that you've been here before on this topic, and

          4  we thank you for the work that you do, and we look

          5  forward to an update.

          6                 CHIEF JAFFE: Thank you.  Good morning

          7  Madam Chair and Mr. Chairman and Members of the

          8  Council.  I am Chief Joanne Jaffe, the Chief of the

          9  Housing for New York City Police Department.  I am

         10  joined today by Douglas Apple, General Manager of

         11  the New York City Housing Authority; Deputy

         12  Inspector James Keogh, Operations Commander of

         13  Patrol Borough Bronx; Deputy Inspector Joseph Reek,

         14  Commanding Officer of the Housing Bureau of Special

         15  Projects section.  On behalf of Police Commissioner

         16  Raymond Kelly, I wish to thank the City Council for

         17  this opportunity to address the Public Safety

         18  Committee and the Subcommittee on Public Housing.

         19  And to provide an overview of the Police

         20  Department's mission and function as it relates to

         21  the safety and security of the residents of public

         22  housing.

         23                 The men and women of the NYPD Housing

         24  Bureau have the responsibility for providing the

         25  security and delivery of police services to over
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          2  412,000 residents, employees, and guests of public

          3  housing throughout New York City.  We are entrusted

          4  to provide these essential services to the largest

          5  public housing authority in North America, which is

          6  made up of over 179,000 apartments in 344

          7  developments, containing 2,686 residential

          8  buildings.

          9                 More than 1,800 uniformed personnel

         10  are assigned to the NYPD Housing Bureau.  Generally,

         11  Housing Bureau Patrol personnel are deployed through

         12  a Police Service Area, or a PSA concept.  A PSA is

         13  similar in structure to an NYPD precinct, except for

         14  geography.  A PSA is much larger in size than a

         15  precinct, and is tasked with providing police

         16  coverage to the many New York City Housing

         17  Authority, or NYCHA developments, located throughout

         18  that area.  A typical patrol precinct covers

         19  approximately 4.2 square miles and is responsible

         20  for providing essential police service to all

         21  properties contained within that boundary.

         22                 Working in close coordination and

         23  partnership with residents, community groups,

         24  development managers, and NYCHA executive staff,

         25  members of the Housing Bureau are committed to
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          2  effectively reduce crime and aggressively target

          3  violations and other conditions that detract from

          4  the quality of life for residents in and around New

          5  York City housing developments.

          6                 United in the common purpose of

          7  making developments a safer place for working

          8  families, seniors, young people, and all the

          9  residents of public housing, the NYPD Housing Bureau

         10  is dedicated to providing the highest level of

         11  professionalism and responsiveness to the needs of

         12  the communities it serves.  We are committed to

         13  improving the quality of life for all residents of

         14  public housing by protecting life and property, and

         15  providing a safe environment free from fear.  We

         16  continue to work together with the community to

         17  solve problems, and to address community's needs and

         18  concerns.

         19                 Some issues I will be discussing this

         20  morning are crime and quality of life in public

         21  housing; patrol deployment; vertical patrols;

         22  current crime reduction strategies such as closed

         23  circuit television, or our VIPER systems; Operation

         24  Impact; Impact Response Teams; and Housing Bureau

         25  restructuring plan.
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          2                 Overall, major felony crime in public

          3  housing has decreased steadily for several years.

          4  Currently, year to date, crime is down approximately

          5  2.3 percent.  To put this crime reduction trend into

          6  perspective, crime in the City's housing

          7  developments has been reduced 53.5 percent as

          8  compared to 11 years ago.  In terms of lives and

          9  victims, 11 years ago, there were 10,836 serious

         10  crimes committed against individuals in public

         11  housing developments.  In the 2005 calendar year,

         12  5,132 such crimes were committed.  Last year,

         13  Housing Bureau offices arrested more than 24,000

         14  persons for crimes committed in public housing

         15  developments, and issued more than 60,000 criminal

         16  court summonses. Criminal court summonses are a

         17  primary tool for addressing quality of life

         18  violations.  This represents 152.5 percent increase

         19  over the past 11 years.  Public housing is a safer,

         20  more secure residential environment than it has been

         21  in recent memory.

         22                 I would now like to discuss what

         23  actions have been taken to accomplish these overall

         24  reductions.

         25                 The Housing Bureau continually
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          2  reviews crime strategies, in an effort to improve

          3  our deployment, and to respond to rapidly changing

          4  crime conditions.  The implementation of the Bronx

          5  Restructuring Plan in January of 2004 is one such

          6  example. We noted that because of the uneven

          7  geographic distribution of housing developments with

          8  our PSAs, our ability to respond to calls for help,

          9  and to perform proactive policing were not being

         10  maximized, especially for those smaller developments

         11  further from the PSA station house.  Initially a

         12  pilot project, this Restructuring Plan became

         13  permanent in November of 2005.  The restructuring

         14  that occurred in the Bronx involved both PSA Seven

         15  and PSA Eight.  Here is a description of the

         16  changes.

         17                 In the 40 and 42 precincts,

         18  developments are patrolled by PSA Seven.  PSA Eight

         19  patrols developments in the 43, 45, and 47th

         20  precincts.  Developments in all other Bronx

         21  precincts are patrolled by precinct personnel,

         22  including a dedicated housing team in each of those

         23  precincts.  It should be noted that PSA Eight also

         24  opened a satellite in the Edenwald Houses in the

         25  47th precinct.  This change provides for greater
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          2  efficiency in the deployment of resources.  Housing

          3  developments in the Bronx are geographically

          4  dispersed over a large area.  The restructuring has

          5  allowed the Housing Bureau to concentrate on core

          6  crime area. Positive effects of the Restructuring

          7  Plan include:

          8                 Total index crimes in developments

          9  still under the jurisdiction of the Housing Bureau

         10  decreased 5.7 percent when comparing the first year

         11  of the pilot project to the year immediately

         12  preceding it.

         13                 Total index crimes in developments in

         14  the seven precincts patrolled by precincts decreased

         15  6.7 percent, when comparing the first year of the

         16  pilot to the year immediately preceding it.

         17                 The mean response time to crimes in

         18  progress in developments patrolled by the Housing

         19  Bureau decrease ten percent, from 9.18 minutes to

         20  8.25 minutes.

         21                 And the mean response time to crimes

         22  in progress in developments patrolled by precincts

         23  decreased 26 percent, from 10.65 minutes to 7.85

         24  minutes.

         25                 Due to the success of this
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          2  restructuring, it has been expanded to Manhattan.

          3  As of April 17, 2006, PSA Four no longer patrols

          4  developments in the 13th precinct.  PSA Five no

          5  longer patrols developments in the 19th precinct.

          6  And PSA Six no longer patrols developments in

          7  Midtown North, the 20, the 30, the 33, and the 34.

          8  Like in the Bronx, a predetermined number of Housing

          9  Bureau Police Officers were transferred from those

         10  affected PSAs to the precinct, and assigned as

         11  dedicated Housing teams.

         12                 Another strategy used in combating

         13  crime is the use of vertical patrols.  Vertical

         14  patrols are tactically planned patrols of the

         15  interior hallways, stairwells, stairways, and

         16  rooftops of multiple occupancy buildings.  These

         17  patrols are very effective in crime fighting.  In

         18  addition to crime prevention, vertical patrols also

         19  serve another very practical and beneficial purpose.

         20    While in the buildings, officers can observe the

         21  physical facility for hazardous or dangerous

         22  conditions such as non- working elevators, lighting,

         23  or any other hazards that can be reported directly

         24  to the Housing Authority for immediate attention.

         25                 Vertical patrols also allow police
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          2  officers to meet and interact positively with

          3  residents.  Vertical patrols are a critical part of

          4  our efforts to protect residents, employees, and

          5  visitors to public housing.  In calendar year 2005,

          6  the NYPD as a whole, conducted over 420,000 vertical

          7  patrols throughout the City, both in public and

          8  privately owned buildings.  Of these Housing Bureau

          9  personnel conducted 181,000 vertical patrols in

         10  housing developments.  For the past six years,

         11  Housing Bureau has recorded an average of 142,000

         12  vertical patrols per year.

         13                 The Housing Bureau currently operates

         14  three Impact Zones that help support crime fighting

         15  efforts.  PSA Two operates an Impact Zone in the

         16  Brownsville, Langston Hughes, Seth Lowe, Tilden, and

         17  Van Dyke Houses in the 73 precinct.  PSA seven

         18  operates an Impact Zone in Millbrook, Mitchell, Mott

         19  Haven, and Patterson Houses in the 40 precinct.  PSA

         20  Five operates a newly designated Impact Zone in the

         21  23 and 28th precincts.  It consists of the

         22  following: Jefferson, Johnson, and Taft in the 23

         23  precinct, and extends into King Houses in the 28

         24  precinct.

         25                 In addition to the three geographical
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          2  Impact Zones, there are three newly formed Housing

          3  Bureau Impact Response Teams, each assigned to a

          4  Housing Bureau command, and deployed by the Borough

          5  Commander, based on crime trends.  Their functions

          6  include identifying crime and quality of life

          7  conditions, and employing resources in a focused

          8  manner.  Deployment is fluid and evaluated on a

          9  daily basis.  Each Impact Response Team is staffed

         10  by approximately one Captain, one Lieutenant, four

         11  to five Sergeants, and 50 police officers.

         12                 Another innovative crime reduction

         13  program that was developed by the Police Department

         14  in conjunction with the New York City Housing

         15  Authority, is closed circuit television, or VIPER

         16  systems.  In 1997, the first such system was

         17  installed at the Grant Housing Development in

         18  Manhattan.  Currently, there are 15 developments

         19  throughout the City with VIPER camera systems, three

         20  in each borough.  The total number of cameras in use

         21  is over 3,100. Nine VIPER sites use the analog

         22  system video cassette recorders to record, while the

         23  remaining six use digital video recorders, or DVRs.

         24  The cameras are mounted only in public areas, with

         25  residents right to privacy and issue of primary

                                                            22

          1  PUBLIC SAFETY AND PUBLIC HOUSING

          2  importance.  Cameras view only those areas normally

          3  visible to the public, and to which officers on

          4  patrol would have access during the normal course of

          5  patrol.  Indoor public areas are monitored with

          6  fixed cameras, while outdoor areas are monitored

          7  with Pan, Tilt, Zoom, or PTZ cameras.  These images

          8  are sent to a centralized viewing location 24 hours

          9  a day, seven days a week, where police officers

         10  monitor and record activity.  If criminal activity

         11  is observed, the monitoring officers alert patrol

         12  officers, who are rapidly deployed to the location

         13  and take appropriate action.  These images are

         14  stored for a one- week period in analog systems, and

         15  ten to fourteen days in digital systems, reviewed if

         16  necessary, and preserved, if needed as evidence in a

         17  criminal case.  Since inception, more than 4,300

         18  arrests have been attributed to direct observation

         19  of post incident reviews made by a Police Department

         20  personnel, using our VIPER system.  Crime in housing

         21  developments equipped with VIPER has steadily

         22  declined.  These cameras and related systems have

         23  been funded and are maintained by the New York City

         24  Housing Authority. The Housing Bureau and NYCHA are

         25  considering and evaluating upgrading the nine
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          2  systems that still use analog technology to digital

          3  systems.  We are also considering consolidating and

          4  networking certain VIPER locations to reduce

          5  personnel staffing and improve supervision.

          6                 In addition to the VIPER systems,

          7  with funding provided by the City Council, NYCHA has

          8  installed small- scale video systems in specific

          9  buildings.  Some systems are development wide. These

         10  cameras record, but are not monitored by Police

         11  Department personnel.  If an incident occurs, video

         12  is reviewed by the appropriate Police Department

         13  investigative unit.  NYCHA has installed these

         14  systems in over 20 developments Citywide.

         15                 Another effective crime fighting

         16  program utilized by the Housing Bureau is Operation

         17  Safe Housing, aimed at reducing drug dealing, sexual

         18  assault, and gun violence on New York City public

         19  housing property.  Operation Safe Housing has three

         20  components: The Trespass Notice Program; the Cases

         21  for Legal Action Program; and the Sex Offender

         22  Address Verification Program.

         23                 The Trespass Notice Programs stands

         24  out in its effectiveness.  The program began in the

         25  borough of Queens, and expanded to Brooklyn.  A
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          2  person who is 16 years of age or older, and arrested

          3  for sale of a controlled substance, or felony sale

          4  of marijuana in a NYCHA development, is served with

          5  a NYCHA Trespass Notice.  This notice informs the

          6  person that he or she is excluded from entering in

          7  or upon any NYCHA property anywhere in New York

          8  City.  In the event the individual is caught

          9  trespassing, he or she could be arrested and charged

         10  with criminal trespassing in the second degree, a

         11  Class A misdemeanor.  So far this year, 440 Trespass

         12  Notices have been served, and 98 individuals have

         13  been arrested for violation of the Trespass Notice.

         14                 The Cases for Legal Action Program is

         15  a program in which NYCHA can evict residents who are

         16  arrested for pursuant to a search warrant where

         17  contraband is recovered, or who are arrested for

         18  certain designated crimes committed on any NYCHA

         19  property, regardless of whether it is their resident

         20  development.  Under Operation Safe Housing, cases

         21  are expedited by the New York City Housing

         22  Authority, based upon the crime charge.

         23                 The Sex Offender Address Verification

         24  Program is a program in which every six months, in

         25  conjunction with the New York City Housing
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          2  Authority, the Housing Bureau conducts a sex

          3  offender verification initiative.  The home address

          4  of every registered sex offender who reported a

          5  NYCHA address to New York State, is visited to

          6  verify residency.  If an address cannot be verified,

          7  a follow up investigation is conducted by the

          8  Detective Bureau.

          9                 In an ongoing effort to rid

         10  developments of illegal guns, we make information

         11  available regarding the Department's GUN STOP

         12  Program to residents of NYCHA developments.  This

         13  information is posted in English and Spanish, in

         14  public areas of PSA station houses, and development

         15  management offices.  Furthermore, GUN STOP cards are

         16  distributed in developments that experience gun

         17  violence. In addition, the Housing Bureau, in

         18  coordination with other units, conducts warrant

         19  initiatives, local parole operations, and

         20  participates in the Department's Anti- Graffiti

         21  Initiative.

         22                 Finally, the Housing Bureau continues

         23  to work closely with the Police Department's Gang

         24  Division and Narcotics Division.  Since the

         25  beginning of 2006, there have been 14 narcotics
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          2  take- downs in NYCHA developments, with a total of

          3  451 persons arrested.  In addition, there have been

          4  three gang take downs, with a total of 47 persons

          5  arrested.

          6                 The Housing Bureau continues to

          7  develop and implement strategies directed at further

          8  reducing crime, and well as enhancing the quality of

          9  life for all residents.  We must remain focused and

         10  committed in order to ensure progress in our

         11  efforts.            Thank you for the opportunity to

         12  address these issue.  We will be pleased to answer

         13  any questions you may have.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you Chief.

         15    First of all, I'd like to introduce some of the

         16  Council Members who have joined us.  Council Member

         17  Katz, Yassky, James, Barron, Liu, and apparently

         18  soon to be Deputy Mayor Oddo.  See someone did watch

         19  Channel 13 the other night Jimmy.

         20                 I want to ask a few questions that go

         21  through your testimony that pop into my head.  Very

         22  briefly.  And then I know one or two of my Council

         23  Members has to leave, so we'll turn it over to them.

         24

         25                 Third paragraph.  Eighteen hundred
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          2  uniformed personnel assigned to the Housing Bureau.

          3  How does one get assigned to that Bureau as opposed

          4  to a precinct?

          5                 CHIEF JAFFE: When a recruit class

          6  graduates, the recruit class is normally divvied up

          7  amongst PSB, Patrol Service Bureau, the Housing

          8  Bureau, and the Transit Bureau.  And then, based on

          9  decisions that the Police Commissioner makes, that

         10  group of officers, the number of which he decides,

         11  is allocated to the Housing Bureau.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Is there any

         13  choice involved? Or they just get randomly

         14  dispersed?

         15                 CHIEF JAFFE: I think as recruits,

         16  they are given an opportunity to give choices of

         17  precincts or boroughs.  I believe they are.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: They are?

         19                 CHIEF JAFFE: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Same paragraph,

         21  you described a PSA as opposed to a precinct.  Let

         22  me give you a chance to just expound on the whole

         23  concept of PSAs and precincts.  What would a PSA

         24  handle instead of a precinct?  What would a precinct

         25  handle instead of a PSA?  And do you think in
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          2  general, that that system is duplicative or helps in

          3  the fight against crime?

          4                 CHIEF JAFFE: To answer your second

          5  question first, I definitely think it helps in our

          6  overall fight to reduce crime in public housing. We

          7  have Domestic Violence Units in a PSA.  We have a

          8  very similar structure in terms of sergeants and

          9  police officers that assign.  Like I said in my

         10  testimony, the biggest difference is some PSAs may

         11  cover an area of which eight or seven or six patrol

         12  precincts have housing developments in that same

         13  area.  So we cover a much larger area

         14  geographically.  And we are deployed that way.

         15                 A precinct covers a very specific

         16  jurisdiction.  And that precinct is broken down into

         17  sectors.  We're basically broken down, we cover

         18  precincts, and then we cover housing developments

         19  within those precincts.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I don't have a

         21  position on this, but why is that better in the

         22  fight against crime?  To have two different police

         23  entities covering the same location.

         24                 CHIEF JAFFE: Many of our housing

         25  developments are large buildings.  They're in
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          2  concentrated areas.  Between the number of people,

          3  the dense locations, I believe our efforts to

          4  enhance community affairs, it's just better to fight

          5  crime and have offices that are assigned to those

          6  developments.  Not necessarily specific development,

          7  but to public housing, enforcing the law, enhancing

          8  you know, quality of life.  Deployed to specifically

          9  public housing.

         10                 MR. APPLE: And Councilman, if I could

         11    --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Just identify

         13  yourself.

         14                 MR. APPLE: I'm Douglas Apple, the

         15  General Manager of the Housing Authority.  And from

         16  the perspective of the Housing Authority, I think

         17  this is one of our most important relationships. You

         18  know, the relationship of Housing  --  the New York

         19  City Police Department, and particularly the Housing

         20  Bureau.  That there's a sort of a single point of

         21  accountability and contact for both residents and

         22  for the Housing Authority, in terms of dealing with

         23  very specific issues in specific complexes.

         24                 I also would say the benefit of

         25  having the Housing Bureau in the  --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Let me ask you a

          3  single point. Do they call the precinct?  Do they

          4  call the PSA?

          5                 MR. APPLE: They call 911.  I mean,

          6  let's be clear. If someone has an incident to

          7  report, they call 911.  But in terms of  --  what

          8  I'm talking about is really from a community

          9  policing standpoint.  Is that you have someone you

         10  can get to know.  Someone who knows the

         11  developments, because there are unique aspects of

         12  public housing complexes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So you're

         14  speaking about the individual officers?  Or are you

         15  speaking about some other  --

         16                 MR. APPLE: I'm talking about the PSA

         17  in general. The whole structure, up to the Chief of

         18  the Bureau.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.

         20                 CHIEF JAFFE: Just, if I can add one

         21  thing.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Sure.

         23                 CHIEF JAFFE: I mean, the most

         24  important thing that we need to understand, and I

         25  know you understand it.  You talked about it in your
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          2  testimony, is the disproportionate amount of

          3  violence that is in public housing.  We are three

          4  and a half percent of the City's crime.  The City's

          5  crime, by and large, is two- thirds property, and

          6  one third against the person.  Our crime in public

          7  housing, it's just the opposite.  It's two thirds

          8  against the person, and one third against the

          9  property  We've a disproportionate amount of violent

         10  crime.  We have three and a half percent of the

         11  City's crime, we're five percent of the population.

         12  A little over five percent of the population, yet 16

         13  or 17 percent of the City's shootings.  Because of

         14  that disproportionate amount of crime, I think you

         15  need officers dedicated to public housing, and to

         16  protect the residents of public housing.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm not arguing.

         18    I just wanted to hear the reasonings.  Now let's

         19   --  how does the overlap work? If there is a call.

         20  Does the precinct respond?  The PSA?  Do they both

         21  respond?  How do you work together?

         22                 CHIEF JAFFE: Okay.  Normally, Central

         23  will call to see, and knows if a housing unit, by

         24  car is in the cue.  And they will assign a job to

         25  the housing unit if they're available.  If they're
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          2  not available, or let's say they don't answer the

          3  radio, if will fall back on the precinct, and the

          4  precinct will get sent to that job.  And we back

          5  each other up interchangeably on all radio runs.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.  Just

          7  continuing to run through the testimony.  You said

          8  that crime  --  major felony crime in public housing

          9  has decreased steadily for seven years.  And then

         10  you day year to date crime is down.  Is that major

         11  felony crime? Or all crime is down 2.3 percent?

         12                 CHIEF JAFFE: Seven major.  What we

         13  measure.  The seven major crimes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.  Would you

         15  have any idea about misdemeanor crime?

         16                 CHIEF JAFFE: No, I don't.  I don't

         17  have that information with me.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.  Now you

         19  go on to mention that your summonses are up, 152

         20  percent increase in 11 years. Summonses are most

         21  likely, obviously for misdemeanors, or violations.

         22  I have  --  I understand what those stats mean, as a

         23  prosecutor.  But can you explain how summonses are

         24  up and that helps you to bring crime down.

         25                 CHIEF JAFFE: Just the nexus between
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          2  quality of life offenses, and violence is very

          3  clear.  It's been clear for many, many years.  It's

          4  the cornerstone of our crime fighting reduction

          5  strategy in the New York City Police Department.

          6  And we summons people in violation and as a result

          7  of summonsing them or arresting them for those

          8  summonses, we are able to deter certain crimes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So basically,

         10  what you're saying is, by grabbing someone for

         11  trespassing, you're preventing perhaps in some

         12  instance, not all obviously, a potential robbery or

         13  something of that nature before it occurs.

         14                 CHIEF JAFFE: Absolutely.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.  Next

         16  page, you go into --  well, vertical patrols.  I'll

         17  leave that to my Co-Chair of this hearing.  But you

         18  do say you did 142,000 vertical patrols per year? I

         19  mean, my very small math knowledge comes out to

         20  something like 400 per day.  I can't do my 11- year

         21  old's math homework, so I'm not sure that's correct.

         22    But that's a lot of vertical patrols.  Is that

         23  about what you do?  Four hundred per day?

         24                 CHIEF JAFFE: I'm not going to figure

         25  out the math in my head, but we do hundreds of
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          2  verticals per day.  We have Impact offices.  That's

          3  all they do is verticals.  We have IRT, they're on

          4  foot.  That's all we do  --  that's all they do are

          5  verticals. We've police officers on patrol.  Some in

          6  RMPs that they're assigned to do some verticals.

          7  When they have free time.  And we have officers just

          8  assigned to developments that are doing vertical

          9  patrol.  A large proportion of our crime is inside

         10  of public housing buildings.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: You mentioned

         12  IRT.  What does that stand for?

         13                 CHIEF JAFFE: Impact Response Teams.

         14  Those three newly formed units that I spoke about in

         15  the testimony.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Regarding those

         17  units, back in our 2004 hearing, you also discussed

         18  Impact Teams.  So how are these different?  Are they

         19  additional teams?  Are they different type teams?

         20                 CHIEF JAFFE: When Inspector Fibbs

         21  talked about them, we did have an Impact Response

         22  Team, back in 2004, for a couple of months.  It was

         23  something very tentative and temporary.  So

         24  unfortunately, it does have the same name.  But the

         25  concept was very, very similar.  But we were using a
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          2  couple of months before then they got reassigned to

          3  PSAs as new recruits.  Now we have three newly

          4  formed  --  it was started in Brooklyn approximately

          5  a year and a half ago.  Six months later, when the

          6  next recruit class came out, we started one in the

          7  Bronx.  And just recently, we started one in

          8  Manhattan.  And it's like a task force concept. It's

          9  similar to a patrol borough's task force.  Focused,

         10  fluid, mobile, report to the borough commander for

         11  deployment each and every day in a geographical

         12  borough.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: See, that's why

         14  we have these hearings every year.  Things change.

         15  Same topic, but we need to do oversight.  So I have

         16  some VIPER questions and we'll move on to my

         17  colleagues.  You mentioned 15 VIPER systems.  There

         18  are apparently at least eight other developments

         19  that have CCTV cameras.  Well that was in 2004.  Can

         20  you update us on that?  And the difference please.

         21                 MR. APPLE: I can maybe do the

         22  numbers, and the Chief will talk about some of the

         23  effectiveness and the way it gets used by the

         24  Police, because the Housing Authority takes

         25  responsibility for installing the systems.
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          2                 Yes, there were 15 built back really

          3  in the late '90s.  I think the last one might have

          4  been finished in early 2000, 2001.  And those are 15

          5  developments of about 3,100 cameras.  And those,

          6  where you have systems where you police officers

          7  sitting in a room within the complex, watching the

          8  activity.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So those are

         10  VIPER cameras.

         11                 MR. APPLE: Those are what's known as

         12  VIPERS.  Since that point, we really moved to a

         13  different model.  Both because of funding

         14  constraints, resource constraints in terms of the

         15  use of officers.  I mean, having officers sit and

         16  watch  --  if you have obviously, one officer

         17  sitting, it's not one officer, it's over the course

         18  of 24 hours, seven days a week.  You have a

         19  significant staffing requirement.

         20                 We've moved to a model that really

         21  has  --  like what we've used in a number of cases

         22  that have been highly you know, visible in the

         23  papers, where we just have a tape system that

         24  monitors and then we can retrieve the tape after a

         25  crime, and have actually made many arrests because
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          2  of that.  That we now have a total of 21

          3  developments that have it today.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And what do you

          5  call those systems?

          6                 MR. APPLE: We call them small- scale,

          7  just to distinguish, small scale CCTV.  But it's the

          8  same concept.  It's a camera.  It's filming the

          9  front of the building, the elevator areas, the

         10  common areas, the lobbies.  And it allows us to

         11  capture information that then the Police Department

         12  can access.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Now when Council

         14  Members fund these individual projects in their

         15  district, camera projects, this is what you're

         16  putting in.

         17                 MR. APPLE: Exactly.  So we have 21 of

         18  them today, and another 23 planned over the next

         19  really 18 months.  So by the end of next year, we

         20  should have a total of I think it's 44 developments

         21  that will have these systems.  And system wide,

         22  we're going to have over 4,800 cameras you know,

         23  between these two different types of systems.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: This is very

         25  interesting.  So you've decided to move away from
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          2  VIPER.  I mean, you gave a variety of reasons.  One

          3  of them being funding.  Obviously, it's much more

          4  expensive to have the cameras set up.  The VIPER

          5  cameras can be manually operated to move and look at

          6  the different areas  --

          7                 MR. APPLE: Yes.  Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: They're

          9  monitored constantly, as you said.  If you had the

         10  funding, would you  --  do you believe you should be

         11  using VIPER?  Or CCTV?

         12                 MR. APPLE: I can certainly  --  I'll

         13  defer to the Chief in terms of the staffing

         14  implications, the manpower, the staffing power.  As

         15  it relates to cameras themselves, I think the

         16  technology is continuing to evolve.  In fact, the

         17  Chief kind of mentioned in her testimony, some

         18  things that we're looking to do in the coming years.

         19    Which is not to do cameras, but to have remote

         20  monitoring.  So for example now, as you know,

         21  technology can allow you to have a camera, and it

         22  can be monitored from almost anywhere. It doesn't

         23  have to be people sitting in a room in a complex.

         24  Right?   And that's a really  --  in the private

         25  sector, in both residential and commercial, that's a
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          2  common scenario, where you have you know, a central

          3  command center that could be almost anywhere,

          4  monitoring cameras.  It gives you  --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's what's

          6  happening now. I'm confused as to where you're going

          7  with that.

          8                 MR. APPLE: It's not what's happening

          9  now.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well it's

         11  monitoring at a central location.

         12                 MR. APPLE: It's in one location in

         13  one development. What I'm talking about is

         14  monitoring from you know, anywhere, multiple

         15  locations.  We now only monitor one location, one

         16  development, one cop in that room in that

         17  development.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So each VIPER

         19  set up in each development has its own monitoring

         20  room in that development?

         21                 MR. APPLE: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.  Chief?

         23                 CHIEF JAFFE: In that development, a

         24  couple of them are in a precinct.  So there are

         25  exceptions.  That's CCTV or VIPER. There's a
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          2  difference between VIPER and, as Mr. Apple is

          3  describing, small scale.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.  And what

          5  is your opinion regarding the effectiveness of one

          6  against the other?

          7                 CHIEF JAFFE: Small scale, you know,

          8  is a great advantage to us now.  It covers  --  in

          9  some developments, it's only a building or two

         10  buildings.  In others, it's cameras throughout the

         11  whole building.  So I think the effect is going to

         12  be similar over time, in terms of the reduction in

         13  crime.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And obviously,

         15  it's less expensive for the camera systems, and the

         16  monitoring.  We're not blind to that obvious

         17  advantage, we deal with budget here too.  So you

         18  believe that for less money and less manpower,

         19  you'll be able to get almost the same crime fighting

         20  advantages?  Is that the summary of what you're

         21  saying about the difference?

         22                 CHIEF JAFFE: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You had to check

         24  with the attorneys first.

         25                 CHIEF JAFFE: Small scale is new.  So
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          2  it's really still to be determined.  We've had great

          3  successes with CCTV.  But is cost prohibitive.  I

          4  think to start a CCTV is anywhere between two to ten

          5  million dollars for any development.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: VIPER or CCTV?

          7                 CHIEF JAFFE: VIPER and CCTV  --  I'm

          8  sorry.  I use that interchangeably,  VIPER and CCTV

          9   --  VIPER.  Two to ten million dollars for any one

         10  development.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So it's the same

         12  cost for VIPER or CCTV?

         13                 MR. APPLE: Right.  They're in a very

         14  different cost. Let's take an example of one that

         15  actually has happened.  In Queensbridge Houses, in

         16   --  not your district Councilman, but nearby in

         17  your  --  in Councilman Gioia's district.  He gave

         18  us money to do the entirety of Queensbridge.  All

         19  right, both the north and the south  --  I want to

         20  say it's close to 60 buildings between the two

         21  sides.  And you know, it's our biggest single

         22  complex.  It roughly costs us $3 million to do the

         23  entirety of Queensbridge Houses.  If we did a VIPER

         24  scenario, it probably would have cost double or

         25  triple that amount.  So it's clearly more cost
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          2  effective.  You now still have the benefit.  We've

          3  actually, at Queensbridge, actually is a place we've

          4  seen the benefits.  We've caught crimes on camera.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Oh, I want to

          6  highly recommend these to my fellow Council Members.

          7    I funded every school and development in my

          8  district.  But Council Member Gioia has done

          9  Queensbridge and Ravenswood, and Ravenswood, just

         10  the other night, we caught the vicious assailant of

         11  the aged delivery man.  So they're very useful.

         12                 I've to many more, but I know that a

         13  lot of Council Members have questions.  And I think

         14  Council Member Barron has to leave.  So we will go

         15  to him first.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you very

         17  much  --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm sorry.  My

         19  Co- chair has graciously deferred to go after her

         20  fellow Council Members.  I don't want you to think

         21  I'm skipping over her.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I want to

         23  thank both Chairs very much for having this hearing.

         24    You know, if this is not a tale of two cities, I

         25  don't know what is.  Because the reality you just
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          2  painted, about policing in our neighborhoods and the

          3  quality of life, and bringing crime down, and it's

          4  doing much better is just the opposite that I have.

          5  Because the crime that's going up in our

          6  neighborhoods is police crime.  They are out of

          7  control.  I've been telling the Mayor that.  I've

          8  been telling the Commissioner of that.  I'm in East

          9  New York.  I'm in Brownsville.  We have the Linden

         10  Houses, the Cyprus Houses.  Scores of public housing

         11  in my district.  You can't even walk around in our

         12  neighborhoods  --  our young people hate the police.

         13    And you all think I'm militant.  I'm telling you,

         14  there's a racial powder keg in our neighborhoods.

         15  And some of my colleagues don't have this reality.

         16  They want more police.  We want more jobs.  I think

         17  the economic  --  it's an economic question, the

         18  crime.  Not a policing question.  Because what

         19  happens in my neighborhood, some of the police

         20  officers work in NYPD, working together with PSA,

         21  are getting No Knock warrants in houses like in

         22  right in Linden Houses.  Young ladies, a two- year

         23  old, a five year old, twelve year old, got a No

         24  Knock warrant, bust in their house, threw her kids

         25  on the floor, put a gun to her head, got the
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          2  information from PSA and the public housing, and

          3  said, Oh, sorry, wrong apartment.  That's the same

          4  thing they did to Alberta Spruill up in Harlem, and

          5  her grandmother caught a heart attack because they

          6  detonated a flash grenade.  What about the vertical

          7  patrols and Timothy Stansbury?  A young man just

          8  going up to cross the top of the roof like that

          9  happens all the time in our neighborhood.  He was

         10  met with a bullet in his chest by New York's finest.

         11

         12                 And then every time I go to a

         13  precinct, or I go down to Central Booking, we  --

         14  there are church going people that are sick of the

         15  police.  I mean, we can't even walk in our

         16  neighborhoods, and --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Can we get to a

         18  question Council Member?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I'm not

         20  finished.  You can cut me off  --  I knew he was

         21  going to cut me off  --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I will cut you

         23  off if you don't ask a question soon.  Because that

         24  puts our other Council Members that need to leave

         25   --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I'm going to

          3  let them talk, but I'm going to say what I have to

          4  say.  With all due respect. Because you always

          5  protect the police officers every chance you get.

          6                 The bottom line is that  --  Yes,

          7  you're very protective of them, and they need to

          8  hear the truth. Because if we don't hear the truth,

          9  they're going to come with some fake resolutions,

         10  and there's going to be an explosion in our

         11  community. I have a lot of questions.  But I just

         12  want to say this.  That the climate in our

         13  community, if we get better jobs and better rec

         14  centers, and exercise Section Three, when people are

         15  doing contracting in our projects, public housing,

         16  let us get 30 percent of the jobs.  Fix up some of

         17  the parks in our neighborhoods  --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member,

         19  this is not about parks and jobs.  You have the

         20  Police Department in front of you.  Ask a question

         21  of the Police Department.  Stop campaigning.       COUNCIL

         22  MEMBER BARRON: I am. And I'm not campaigning.  And

         23  stop being over protective of your police.  We're

         24  talking about crime.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: This is a
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          2  hearing.  --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: We're talking

          4  about crime. We're talking about crime in our

          5  community.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes, exactly.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And it's about

          8  economics and policing.  Because the worst  --  the

          9  economics is the worst we get from the police.  Now

         10  let me ask you something, since you want questions.

         11  Do you realize that it is a violation of our human

         12  rights, our Constitutional rights and our civil

         13  rights, for police officers just to stop us and ask

         14  us for ID without probable cause? Isn't that

         15  correct?

         16                 CHIEF JAFFE: They need a basis.  They

         17  don't need probable cause.  But yes, you are right.

         18  They need a basis to do that stop and question.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: You are right.

         20    And are you sitting here telling, testifying today

         21  that most of the stops that occur under your command

         22  are with the basis.  Because it's not basis.  That's

         23  not  --  there's no legal language that says basis.

         24  There's probable cause or reasonable suspicion.

         25  What is the basis for all of these stops?  Are you
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          2  sitting here telling me today that the Attorney

          3  General was wrong?  That the stop and frisk that

          4  were unjustified in our neighborhood.  Is that a

          5  violation of our rights as human beings, to move

          6  about freely in our neighborhoods, without a police

          7  officer  --  not only do they stop you for your ID,

          8  but the young people, Black and Latino youths, they

          9  cuss them out, and tell them to get the "F" out of

         10  here, after they take their ID and don't find out.

         11  Do you get those kinds of experiences when your

         12  police officers are stopping our people in the

         13  neighborhoods?

         14                 CHIEF JAFFE: I get some complaints

         15  related to that at community council meetings.  And

         16  at different times when I or my commanders interact

         17  with the public.   And when we do, we look into them

         18  and investigate them.  So if you have a specific

         19  complaint  --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Oh, we have

         21  plenty.  And I'll get them to you.  But have you

         22  ever  --

         23                 CHIEF JAFFE: If you have a specific

         24  complaint, I would be more than willing to  --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Have you ever
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          2   --

          3                 CHIEF JAFFE: I'd be more than willing

          4  to investigate and look into it.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Have you ever

          6  disciplined a police officer under your command for

          7  stopping and frisking someone without either filling

          8  out the form or unconstitutionally doing it?

          9                 CHIEF JAFFE: Our officers are

         10  disciplined for abuse of Stop, Question, and Frisk.

         11  And many, many other Department policies.  I don't

         12  want to say frequently.  I don't want to put a

         13  number to it, but  --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Well I would

         15  like to have the number.  Have you, under your

         16  command, have you actually been involved in seeing

         17  to it that an officer was disciplined for stopping

         18  and frisking unconstitutionally?

         19                 CHIEF JAFFE: I sign off on all

         20  charges and specifications preferred against

         21  officers in the Housing Bureau. Other than  --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I know your

         23  role and responsibility, I'm saying have you

         24  specifically  --

         25                 CHIEF JAFFE: I sign off on them, so
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          2  I'm agreeing with them if I sign off on them.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Well I'd like

          4  to have the number of those, because it happens

          5  frequently.  And for the vertical patrol, when an

          6  officer is on a vertical patrol, what is the reason

          7  for them drawing their weapons, one, and then

          8  putting their finger on the trigger and squeezing

          9  it.  Isn't it some policy around first having your

         10  weapon out, while you're on vertical  -- let me ask

         11  you that first.  When they're on vertical patrol,

         12  are they allowed to have their weapons out?

         13                 CHIEF JAFFE: Yes, they are.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And on what

         15  basis are they to raise the weapon and discharge

         16  their weapon?

         17                 CHIEF JAFFE: When they believe deadly

         18  physical force is about to be used against them or

         19  another person.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And can I ask

         21  you, do you think in the Stansbury case, that that

         22  was indeed a reason for Officer Neary to discharge

         23  his weapon?  Or are you even familiar with the

         24  Stansbury case?

         25                 CHIEF JAFFE: Sir, I'm familiar with
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          2  it.  I responded to the scene.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So answer the

          4  question.

          5                 CHIEF JAFFE: That officer is

          6  receiving charges and specifications.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Excuse me?

          8                 CHIEF JAFFE: That officer is being

          9  disciplined and receiving charges and

         10  specifications.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: No, I'm saying

         12    --  I mean, you was on the scene, because from

         13  what we're seeing, he's been raised to the level of

         14  a upper position in the PBA, and he's the one who is

         15  going to be first on the scene now, when there's

         16  some shootings.  So that doesn't seem to be a person

         17  being punished or disciplined.

         18                 CHIEF JAFFE: I have not heard that

         19  he's been raised to a position in the PBA.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Well that's a

         21  fact.  You get the facts.  He is.  What was the

         22  punishment?

         23                 CHIEF JAFFE: I don't believe he has

         24  gone to Department trial yet.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Do you know
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          2  how long that's been?

          3                 CHIEF JAFFE: A couple of years since

          4  the shooting happened.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Yes, yes.  It

          6  sure has been.           And then also, No Knock

          7  warrants.  Are you receiving any complaints about

          8   --  in public housing the amount of No Knock

          9  warrants that are occurring in our neighborhoods?

         10  And they have the wrong apartments?  Just recently,

         11  in Linden Houses, and in Crown Heights, a young man,

         12  it happened to him as well, was beaten up in front

         13  of his four- year old daughter, and they just told

         14  him, I'm sorry.   Is there any rise in complaints

         15  from people who are having their apartments broken

         16  into?  And they have the wrong apartments?

         17                 CHIEF JAFFE: Since the Spruill

         18  incident, the Police Department policies are very,

         19  very clear.  Very, very specific.  There is

         20  specialized training for all our commanders, that is

         21  a must attend.  All the Housing Bureau commanders

         22  have received that.  I have not received complaints.

         23    If you are  you know, giving me information about

         24  a search warrant that you feel was done unjustly, I

         25  will investigate it.  Search warrants are written,
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          2  are given by a judge who reviews them carefully, and

          3  makes a determination of whether it should be a No

          4  Knock warrant or not.              COUNCIL MEMBER

          5  BARRON: And it has to be based upon the Police

          6  Department's affidavit, correct?  Correct?

          7                 CHIEF JAFFE: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right.  The

          9  Police Department has to give that judge an

         10  affidavit explaining that they have this apartment,

         11  apartment under surveillance.  And that they have

         12  cameras, or they had informers, or they had reason

         13  to believe that drugs was being trafficking in and

         14  out of that apartment, because they had it under

         15  surveillance.  Isn't that correct?

         16                 CHIEF JAFFE: Well no.  It doesn't

         17  necessarily have to be drugs.  Many times, it's

         18  guns.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Well not

         20  necessarily drugs. It could be guns.  But whatever,

         21  they has to be under surveillance, that apartment.

         22  Or have some reason to believe guns or drugs was in

         23  that apartment, or being  --  isn't that correct?

         24                 CHIEF JAFFE: Right.  We just don't

         25  arbitrarily get search warrants  --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Yes you do.

          3  Yes.  I'm telling you it happens.  You're not in

          4  touch with the reality of what's going on in our

          5  communities.  That it is happening on a daily basis.

          6    And people have complained.  We have brought

          7  people in to complain to different PSAs, to the

          8  NYPD.  There are complaints.  It's lot like we're

          9  not complaining.  As a matter of fact, in the 75th

         10  and 73rd, the complaints are up in those areas.

         11  There's more police complaints than we've ever had

         12  before.  And in a lot of our young people also.

         13  You're talking about the quality of life.  You think

         14  it's going down because the statistics, the crime is

         15  going down?  They don't count the police crimes.

         16  But our quality of life is deteriorating and so is

         17  the relationship with the Police Department, because

         18  if you ride your bike on the sidewalk, you don't get

         19  a summons, they putting you through the system.  So

         20  a lot of our young Black youth, who are already

         21  struggling in an oppressive condition, whether it's

         22  schooling or trying to get jobs, now have records.

         23  Because the quality of life crime is you riding a

         24  bike on the sidewalk.  Or loitering. Standing in

         25  front of your own building.  People are being
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          2  arrested for loitering.  And not once in a while.

          3  On a daily basis.  That's why your arrest record is

          4  so high.  Because these are not criminals that

          5  you're arresting.  These are people who are living

          6  good citizens that are having to have these issues

          7  in our community. And it has to stop.  You can come

          8  here and give a flowery presentation to the City

          9  Council on how well you're doing.  I have too many

         10  public housing developments in my district where

         11  church going people have had it.  They've fed up

         12  with how police are acting in our neighborhoods.

         13  Talking about professionalism. Courtesy.  They're

         14  not polite.  They're cussing us out.  And you need

         15  to get them to stop cussing us out, throwing us up

         16  against the wall, and telling us to walk.  My son

         17  got stopped ten times.  Ten times.  They made him

         18  take his shoes off in the street.  Everybody that

         19  has hip- hop gear on is not a criminal.   This is

         20  what's happening.  And I'm giving to you all like

         21  this because it's an urgent matter.  We was in

         22  Ingersol Houses right now they're making a hero out

         23  of police officer before the investigation even

         24  finished.  Erik Hynes, a 17-year-old was shot. I'll

         25  be with his parents tomorrow.  We're going to have a
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          2  press conference in front of One Police Plaza.  Wait

          3  till you find out information on that case.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member,

          5  are you finishing up?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Almost.  I'm

          7  angry.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: The next time

          9  you ask for a courtesy to go before Committee

         10  Members and before everyone else gets a chance, I'll

         11  remember this.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Well you know,

         13  you could remember it, Peter.  And you could talk

         14  about courtesy here.  You get your police to be more

         15  courtesy in our neighborhoods. Courteous in our

         16  neighborhoods.  Because this is a hearing, and

         17  Peter, the only reason I'm doing this, not to

         18  disrespect you, but there's a priority here.  I have

         19  probably more public housing in my district than

         20  anyone.  And I'm going to sit here and speak up for

         21  my people, no matter what the process is here,

         22  because we're talking life and death.  We are dying.

         23    You're having a hearing, and getting some stats.

         24  Our lives are on the line.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You can call as
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          2  many press conferences as you like.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I'm not

          4  talking about a press conference.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Say anything you

          6  want, but you have to be respectful of your

          7  colleagues.  We only have this  -- the Police

          8  Department for another 40 minutes, and there's

          9  people who have questions.  And I let you go first,

         10  as a courtesy to you.              COUNCIL MEMBER

         11  BARRON: Right.  And I appreciate the courtesy  --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And if you abuse

         13  that courtesy --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Well you could

         15  call that abuse.  You should come to our

         16  neighborhood and see how abusive your police are.

         17  There's more abusive than I could ever be here at

         18  City Hall, speaking on behalf of my people.  And I'm

         19  going to continue to do it, no matter what you say.

         20  And I'll be finished. I just want to say to the

         21  Chief, as I'm trying to say to the Mayor, as I'm

         22  trying to say to Kelly, you can come to these

         23  hearings and paint these pictures that you're

         24  pitching and look at the statistics.  There is a

         25  racial powder keg ready to explode in our
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          2  communities.  I don't know how often more could I

          3  tell my people, give the system a chance.  You know,

          4  let's have a hearing.  Let's have a march.  Let's

          5  have a press conference.  Let's have a

          6  demonstration.  And that's all we know how to do to

          7  address this. And I just didn't want people to come

          8  here and get a routine hearing with some statistics,

          9  and not understand the life and death situation that

         10  we're under.  The police are out of control.  And

         11  some of it is racist.  There's a lot of White cops

         12  in our neighborhoods that come from Long Island or

         13  whatever they're coming from.  They're afraid of us.

         14    If I saw ten young White  --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member,

         16  you are done now.  Okay?  If anyone will ignite a

         17  racial powder keg it would be you.  You are

         18  finished.  We need your  --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I'm not

         20  finished.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Your colleagues

         22  need a chance to discuss the same matters you'd like

         23  to discuss.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I'm not

         25  finished.  And I'm going to  --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You can call

          3  your own hearing any time you'd like, Council

          4  Member.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I'm not

          6  finished.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And ask the

          8  Police Department to come.  This is not your

          9  hearing.  This is ours.  We've got other Council

         10  Members who need a chance to speak, Council Member.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And I'm going

         12  to let them, and I'll be finished in another two

         13  minutes.  I'll be finished.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You got 30

         15  seconds.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I got two

         17  minutes.  Those days are over Peter.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: What days would

         19  those be, Council Member Barron?  What days would

         20  those be that  --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Days when you

         22  got all the control.  Those days are over.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: The days when I

         24  give you courtesy to go before every other Council

         25  Member and speak your piece and then now they won't
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          2  be able to be heard because of you. Are those the

          3  days that are over Council Member?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Well, Chief, I

          5  just want to say to you, that I would like to sit

          6  down and meet with you and discuss some of these

          7  issues more seriously than the discussion that's

          8  going on here now.  Because it's a life and death

          9  situation. The police are out of control.  And I'd

         10  like to sit down with you and show you, and give you

         11  evidence of all of the stuff that I'm talking about,

         12  because there's more.  It's there, and we have to do

         13  something before there's an explosion  I'm a social

         14  forecaster. Don't blame me for the explosion.  Just

         15  like you don't blame the weatherman for the storm.

         16  Have a good day.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member

         18  James.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I was out in

         20  Whitmans the night that the officer was shot.  And

         21  Mr. Hynes was shot.  In fact, I spoke to a number of

         22  witnesses, and the elected officials from Downtown

         23  Brooklyn are meeting with Commissioner Kelly,

         24  regarding that incident, to find out  --  to get the

         25  version  --  NYPD's version of the facts, as well as
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          2  we will be continuing to have discussions with

          3  individuals from the family and residents of

          4  Whitmans.

          5                 I was at Whitman last night, another

          6  gentleman was shot.  And expired.  He was 24 years

          7  old.  And then I went over to PSA Three.  Well

          8  before I went to PSA Three, I encountered several

          9  residents on the corner of Myrtle and Carleton,

         10  where I had to avert a riot, where there were some

         11  individuals who were highly agitated and a sergeant,

         12  who was highly agitated, and calmer heads needed to

         13  prevail.  I asked the residents to move on.  And I

         14  also asked the sergeant to move on.  And that

         15  averted what some business owners on Myrtle Avenue

         16  described as a riot.  I say all of that not for any

         17  compliments, but to say there is a problem in my

         18  district. And I have written several letters to

         19  Police Commissioner Kelly. That Ingersol, Whitman

         20  and Farragut, there is a significant problem.  Last

         21  year, there were hardly any homicides in the 88th

         22  precinct and the 84th precinct.  We now have I

         23  believe nine homicides as of last count.  And most

         24  of them, a majority of them unfortunately occurred

         25  in public housing.
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          2                 Last year, I can recall two senior

          3  citizens who were sitting on a bench on a beautiful

          4  Summer afternoon.  And two drug dealers decided to

          5  engage in gunfire.  Both of these church- going

          6  senior citizens were both shot.  They've asked for

          7  transfers.  They have yet to be transferred.  I

          8  believe one was transferred and the other has not.

          9                 My question is, the VIPER system and

         10  the smaller scale video camera system, how many of

         11  them are installed in  -- how many of them are in

         12  Downtown Brooklyn?  Specifically Ingersol, Whitman,

         13  and Farragut and Atlantic Terminal?  I believe I

         14  provided funding for Atlantic Terminal.  Does

         15  Ingersol, Whitman, and Farragut have any of these

         16  video cameras?  And if so, how much would it cost

         17   --

         18                 MR. APPLE: Atlantic Terminal, you're

         19  absolutely right Councilwoman, we did install last

         20  year.  And we're certainly glad to work with you to

         21  look at what the cost would be for Whitman,

         22  Ingersol, and Farragut.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you very

         24  much.  And I know that in Atlantic Terminal, crime

         25  is down in Atlantic Terminal, and we've averted some
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          2  incidents as a result of the video cameras. And I

          3  look forward to working with you to get a cost on

          4  Ingersol, Whitman, and Farragut.

          5                 Let me ask you this question.  I

          6  recognize that you did have a deficit.  Are you

          7  working with the federal government? Or do you

          8  anticipate any public dollars coming from the

          9  federal government to provide for video cameras in

         10  public housing?

         11                 MR. APPLE: We get no specific federal

         12  dollars for cameras.  It's a local choice.  And

         13  obviously, as in Atlantic Terminal, as in

         14  developments in many of the districts that you

         15  represent, that are there today, the Council people

         16  that are here today, we have worked in partnership

         17  with you to come up with funding to install those

         18  cameras and also maintain those cameras.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Now, it's my

         20  understanding  --

         21                 MR. APPLE: We're very supportive of

         22  the Intro being proposed by Councilman Vallone to

         23  ask the federal government to create a separate

         24  funding stream for security and safety in public

         25  housing.  And think that's a great thing, and would
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          2  love to work with the Council on that effort.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Do you

          4  anticipate federal dollars coming down?

          5                 MR. APPLE: There is no federal

          6  dollars in the current '06 budget.  And none that

          7  I'm aware of in the current '07 budget which is yet

          8  to be adopted.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: What was the

         10  basis for federal funding for bodegos?

         11                 MR. APPLE: I'm not familiar with

         12  that, to be very honest.  I believe that was an

         13  initiative that the Police had some role in, but I

         14  can't tell you, that didn't involve public housing.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So perhaps the

         16  Police brass can answer the question.  As far as you

         17  know, did NYPD, were they involved in any

         18  discussions with the federal government with regard

         19  to federal funding for bodegos?

         20                 CHIEF JAFFE: No, I don't believe so.

         21  Our program was Operation Safe Store.  The federal

         22  funding, I believe, was secured by Senator Schumer

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And as far as

         24  you know, is Senator Schumer initiating any federal

         25  funds for public housing? Video cameras?
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          2                 MR. APPLE: Senator Schumer has been a

          3  great advocate for public housing funding.  As you

          4  know well, Councilman, from our previous

          5  discussions, that we face a series of financial

          6  challenges.  And he's been really in the forefront

          7  of really helping fight for more money for public

          8  housing in general.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Operation Safe

         10  Housing.  I know the  --  in 2004, Mayor Bloomberg

         11  announced Operation Safe Housing.  Again, in

         12  Ingersol, Whitman, and Farragut, the housing is not

         13  safe.  The residents last night cried out to me that

         14  they need more police patrol.  That they need to

         15  reduce the amount of crime.  That they need guns off

         16  the street.  As a result of the modernization

         17  project, Mr. Apple, I know that you are aware, it

         18  was a subject of conversation at PSA Three last

         19  night, that a number of drug dealers, unfortunately,

         20  have taken over the abandoned apartments that are

         21  now vacant as a result of the modernization project.

         22    And are wreaking havoc on the lives of residents

         23  of Ingersol, Whitman, and Farragut, who are

         24  overwhelmingly  --

         25                 MR. APPLE: As soon as we are aware,
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          2  and we do know that there has been some isolated

          3  incidents there, isolated, we act with the Police

          4  consort immediately.  So if you are aware,

          5  Councilwoman, or if residents are aware, we'd like

          6  to know immediately what apartments are in fact been

          7  taken over.  Please tell us immediately.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: It's my

          9  understanding that the residents have provided the

         10  information to you, but to no avail.

         11                 MR. APPLE: I find that hard to

         12  believe.  I would love to talk to you about that

         13  specifically.  And I'd love to know exactly what

         14  apartments those are.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: In addition to

         16  that, again, a PSA meeting last night, some

         17  residents of Atlantic Terminal have indicated to me

         18  that they shared some information with officers with

         19  regards to drug dealing and some criminal activity

         20  at Atlantic Terminal.  Again, to no avail.

         21                 CHIEF JAFFE: Councilwoman, when

         22  information comes to us, there's a procedure that we

         23  must follow.  And if it's narcotics inside of an

         24  apartment, it gets forwarded to the Narcotics

         25  Division.  Sometimes, involved in their
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          2  investigation, they need to purchase some drugs.

          3  And a case like that could take some time, so you

          4  won't necessarily see immediate effect.  It could

          5  take three months, six month, nine months.  And I

          6  know how frustrating that is.  And I work very

          7  closely with the residents of Red Hook Houses, as

          8  you know.  We had a large- scale drug dismantling

          9  take down there just recently.  And you know, the

         10  frustration was tremendous on part of the residents.

         11    There was violence there.  And we worked very,

         12  very closely with them, and we were working a large

         13  case there, and that happens throughout the City in

         14  many different areas, in many different

         15  developments.

         16                 So I will take whatever information

         17  you have specifically about Atlantic Terminal.  But

         18  I don't want you to assume that just because it

         19  doesn't look like the information is not acted on,

         20  that it's not acted on.  But I'd love to have that

         21  information and just ensure that it is being looked

         22  at.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: There has been

         24  a mobile unit parked on Myrtle Avenue for some time.

         25    Right outside of Ingersol. What services do they
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          2  provide?  They have unfortunately, they have been

          3  parked there throughout the Summer.  And they were

          4  parked out there this morning.  I drove by.  Again,

          5  crime is up in Ingersol, Whitman, and Farragut.

          6  People feel that they are under siege.  And they

          7  want the crime to be reduced.  Particularly, they

          8  want guns off the street.  I recognize it's a

          9  balancing act.

         10                 Last night at PSA Three a number of

         11  the Police, the sergeant in fact, stated that 100

         12  summonses have been issued in the aftermath of the

         13  shooting of the sergeant.  Most of those summonses

         14  were not for quality of life issues.  They were for

         15  relatively minor offenses, and there were several

         16  individuals, again, who were law- abiding citizens,

         17  who were given summonses for activity which I

         18  seriously question the criminal component.  One

         19  individual last night who spoke, was a officer, a

         20  member of the Corrections, and was given a summons,

         21  a disorderly conduct.  There were no facts tied to

         22  the summons.  No specific elements to the summons at

         23  all. The officer, she tells me, indicated to her

         24  that we have to give you the summons because one of

         25  our officers was shot, and we're taking back
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          2  Ingersol and Whitman.  One hundred summonses since

          3  last Thursday, the night that he was shot.  One

          4  hundred.  One hundred.  And again, most of them were

          5    --  I recognize the broken window theory.  Read

          6  the book.  And know all the sergeants.  I'm an

          7  attorney myself.  Practice quite frequently.  In

          8  fact, I'm in court on a weekly basis, trying to get

          9  people out of jail.  But a lot of the residents who

         10  received these summons are law- abiding citizens,

         11  who feel that they are now the victims of this

         12  overzealousness in the aftermath of this sergeant

         13  being shot.  Which was a tragedy, no question about

         14  it.  Which was a tragedy.  And I recognize it's a

         15  balancing act, because you have a significant number

         16  of residents who want peace and order, particularly

         17  senior citizens.  But I think the balance is now

         18  tipped now, against the interest of residents.

         19                 CHIEF JAFFE: Well I think you're 100

         20  percent accurate, it is a very delicate balancing

         21  act.  The Command Post vehicle, I believe what

         22  you're talking about, just in the beginning of your

         23  statement, there's a Command Post vehicle.  And the

         24  Command Post vehicle is placed in areas to heighten

         25  visibility of the Police.  It's almost like this
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          2  sub- satellite station that you could have

          3  temporarily.  And it helps protect the residents,

          4  and it's one of the initiatives we do.  We send a

          5  lot of police officers.  We work closely with the

          6  residents of Ingersol, Whitman, and Farragut.  We

          7  know the connections.  The drug connections.  The

          8  violence among those three developments, in both the

          9  A4 and the A8 precincts.  It's a tough place.  I

         10  agree.

         11                 I'd like to just read for you  --

         12  like we send out Brooklyn Impact Response Team that

         13  I talked about before.  And I would just like to

         14  spend just one minute, just reading some of those

         15  stops, what they lead to.  Not necessarily in the

         16  A8, but in that area of Brooklyn.  In September,

         17  stopped a male for acting disorderly.  The male was

         18  wanted for a shooting in the 79. September, stopped

         19  a male for riding a bicycle on the sidewalk. Male

         20  was wanted for a shooting in the 88.  While

         21  conducting a vertical, had a pickup of shots fired

         22  from the rooftop.  MOS recovered a loaded black tech

         23  9 on the roof of 60 Fleet Walk. Stopped a male for

         24  riding a bicycle on the sidewalk.  Recognized perp

         25  from a photo in Crime Information Center as being
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          2  wanted for a robbery in the 90.  While doing a

          3  vertical patrol in the 79, MOS observed male loading

          4  a 45-caliber handgun. Male was placed under arrest.

          5  January of '06, pickup gun arrest, 79 precinct,

          6  after hearing shots fired.  Stopped male for smoking

          7  in lobby of development in the 81 precinct.  Male

          8  was armed with a loaded 32 caliber gun.  Picked up a

          9  male for making graffiti.  Stopped male for acting

         10  disorderly.  Male was wanted by the 90 precinct in

         11  connection with an armed robbery.  Male arrested for

         12  criminal possession of a gun.  Recovered a loaded

         13  357- caliber while on routine patrol.  Stopped a

         14  male for open container.  Male was wanted for grand

         15  larceny by the 75 precinct.

         16                 These are just examples of you use

         17  like IRT, our Impact Response Team, one of the

         18  places I would say they're mostly deployed is to

         19  Ingersol Whitman.  By an large, they work 1800 by

         20  0200, so you would see that additional support to

         21  PSA Three there at night.  This is some of our

         22  successes, just a small amount, to help decrease and

         23  prevent the amount of violence in those

         24  developments.

         25                 In addition, we work very, very
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          2  closely and other bureaus are committed to working

          3  with me and the residents of housing.  Both

          4  Narcotics, Gang, Warrants.  We're doing initiatives

          5  all the time, all over the City of New York to

          6  protect the residents of public housing.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Again, in the

          8  aftermath of that shooting last week  --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Councilwoman,

         10  could I just ask you  --  because you're a

         11  colleague, the rest of us are not going to be able

         12  to ask all the questions we want to, and get the

         13  answers we want to.  I need everyone to set a time

         14  limit.  Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes.  Two more

         16  questions, and I'll be finished.

         17                 In the aftermath of the sergeant

         18  being shot last week, I witnessed at least ten

         19  individuals that were removed from 14 Auburn Place.

         20  At the time, I was told by the officer in charge

         21  that they had outstanding warrants.  Only to find

         22  out the next day that that was not true at all.

         23  They were all taken down to Central Booking on

         24  discons.  Disorderly conducts, because they happened

         25  to be in the apartment where the suspect lived.  And
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          2  it was the apartment where I believe a magazine and

          3  some drug paraphernalia was thrown out.  These

          4  individuals, when they came in, and they opened up

          5  the door, they came in.  They were watching

          6  television at the time, and they was some drug

          7  paraphernalia in the apartment.  But they were all

          8  arrested for disorderly conduct.  And most of the

          9  charges, after talking to them yesterday, were all

         10  dismissed.

         11                 So I'm trying to get the name of the

         12  officer again, who indicated to me that they all had

         13  outstanding warrants.  Again, he misrepresented the

         14  truth to me.  They all were arrested for disorderly

         15  conduct.  And I guess they were trying to get

         16  information from them with regards to the nine

         17  millimeter gun, which is still out there.  Do you

         18  know  --  do you have any information with regards

         19  to why an officer would lie to an elected official?

         20                 CHIEF JAFFE: No.  I have no idea why,

         21  or if in fact that officer was lying.  Those people

         22  could have popped warrants. I don't know if they

         23  did.  And then we find out that the warrants were

         24  vacated after we take them back to a police

         25  facility.  That is a possibility.  We were also
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          2  freezing that apartment.  The detectives were

          3  freezing that apartment, because contraband did come

          4  out of that apartment when the officers were

          5  approaching it. They were freezing it until a judge

          6  signed a search warrant for that location.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Was the nine-

          8  millimeter ever recovered?

          9                 CHIEF JAFFE: I don't know.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.  The

         11  confluence of guns, violence, drugs, despair,

         12  economic neglect, unfortunately, has created a

         13  powder keg in some communities.  We really need to

         14  focus again on that really delicate balancing act.

         15  We really, really need to work closely with the

         16  tenants associations.  They have so much

         17  information.  And all of the residents.  The vast

         18  majority of residents  --  I don't want anyone to

         19  leave this room, are god fearing, hard- working

         20  individuals who live in public housing, who want the

         21  same things that you and I want, for our families to

         22  live in peace, and we want our schools to work.

         23  They want their husbands and the men in their

         24  communities to have jobs and take care of their

         25  families.  I'm down there just about every day.  And

                                                            74

          1  PUBLIC SAFETY AND PUBLIC HOUSING

          2  I tend to be on the street every single day, as most

          3  of you know, and I respond to every crime scene in

          4  my neighborhood.  Again, I would like to work with

          5  all of you.  I would like to support tenant patrols.

          6    I believe that would be really helpful in

          7  addressing this crime issue.  I look forward to

          8  further conversations with you. And again, the

          9  elected officials in Downtown Brooklyn will be

         10  having a meeting with Commissioner Kelly on Monday.

         11  I recognize that my colleague is having a press

         12  conference.  I will not be in attendance.  I'm

         13  waiting for the facts, and then will be reporting to

         14  the rest of the constituents that I represent.

         15  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you

         17  Council Member. Council Member James is also not a

         18  Member of this Committee, but is here because this

         19  is such an important topic to her, and we appreciate

         20  her cutting short her questions.  Again, not through

         21  our own faults.

         22                 You know what Council Member James

         23  just said about the vast majority of the residents,

         24  and I have some residents from Astoria Housing

         25  Development who were here today, and with many, many
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          2  housing residents, and from the vast majority, what

          3  we actually hear is we need more police.  Where are

          4  the police?  We need more police.  Drug dealers are

          5  shooting.  Little girls are dying.  We need more

          6  police.  And so we put, the Council and the Mayor

          7  this year, put 1,200 more in the streets.  And so

          8  I'd like to know how many of those, or if any of

          9  those, are going into housing? And has that number

         10  of 1,800 that you testified about, is that up or

         11  down from last year?

         12                 CHIEF JAFFE: We're up somewhat from

         13  last year.  One of the only bureaus that does show

         14  an increase.  You know, as time goes on, like within

         15  two weeks, we'll lose some bodies.  You know, every

         16  week we lose some people, and then a new class

         17  graduates, and we get a new allocation of newly

         18  assigned recruits that are either sent to Impact

         19  zones, and then the Impact police officers are

         20  redistributed to PSAs, or they go to PSAs.

         21                 So we are up a little bit.  We've

         22  formed three new IRTs, as I stated before.  Three

         23  different classes.  Fifty, fifty, and fifty.  We

         24  didn't utilize those police officers to fill the

         25  IRTs, we used those Impact officers that were the
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          2  new recruits, moved those Impact officers into IRT,

          3  so they had six months out in the street.  And then

          4  they were backfilled by the newly assigned police

          5  officers.

          6                 So as a result of the new IRTs, we do

          7  have an increase in staffing right now, as compared

          8  to last year.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm glad to hear

         10  that.  We have three more Council Members at least

         11  with questions.  And again, I ask you all to limit

         12  to about five minutes.  We'll start with Council

         13  Member Mark- Viverito.  Then to Council Member Oddo.

         14     And then Council Member Addabbo.  Council Member

         15  Viverito.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Okay.

         17  Thank you Chairman Vallone, and Chairwoman Mendez

         18  for holding this hearing. And thank you Chief, for

         19  being here today and for your testimony.           I

         20  do kind of want to reinforce the balance that

         21  Councilwoman James talked about, with regards to

         22  policing within a public housing developments.  I am

         23  a representative that is seriously concerned about

         24  safety in my community.  As I'm sure we all are.

         25  But again, it's this balancing act.  I know that in
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          2  my district, which ten percent of the public housing

          3  stock is in my district, between the PSAs and the

          4  precincts, I have eight precincts that my district

          5  covers, due to the geographics of my district, which

          6  covers two boroughs.  It includes Central Park.

          7  There's a lot of geography to cover.  There's a lot

          8  of incidences to monitor.

          9                 One question I just have  --  and I

         10  know that the Chairman opened up talking about some

         11  incidences that have happened in the past two

         12  months.  I want to add two to those.  Of this past

         13  weekend, Rosina Jones, 13- years old, was shot East

         14  106th Street. She was in critical condition.  She's

         15  now in stable condition at Lehman Village Houses.

         16  And then over the Summer, or in September, a young

         17  man was shot and killed by police by East River

         18  Houses.  So those are two incidences most

         19  immediately that have occurred within my district in

         20  public housing developments.

         21                 I've had meetings with captains in

         22  the precincts. I've also met with Captain Kavanagh

         23  in PSA Five.  My concerns is about  --  I want to

         24  talk just first of all protocol, with regards to how

         25  we, as Council Members are called when incidences
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          2  happen? It is very inconsistent.  I have never

          3  received a call from PSA Five with regards to

          4  incidents that have happened in my district, and I

          5  really would ask that you have conversations with

          6  all of the PSA captains, deputy inspectors, et

          7  cetera, to ensure that they do communicate

          8  proactively with us as Members and representatives.

          9  I would like to know about things that are

         10  happening.  The Frederick Douglas, that the Chairman

         11  alluded to, the woman and the daughter that were

         12  found in Frederick Douglas Houses, I never received

         13  a call with regards to that incident.  It was

         14  through the news that I found out about it.  I went

         15  to the memorial service.  And that is not the way

         16  that we want to talk about a proactive, engaged, and

         17  working relationship I think with the PSAs.  I just

         18  really want to mention that to you.  And I was very

         19  alarmed that I have not received any calls with

         20  regards to Mosina (phonetic) Jones, who was shot in

         21  Lehman village.  And again, I found out about it

         22  through the news.  And that's not the way that I

         23  think we should be working together.

         24                 Having said that, I do want to you

         25  know, value and underscore the good work that is
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          2  being done.  But there are also concerns.  I know

          3  that I meet consistently with a lot of my public

          4  housing resident and tenant associations.  And the

          5  overwhelming concern that I hear from the presidents

          6  and from the tenants, and at different public

          7  housing on a weekly basis, is the lack of respect

          8  with regards to how officers are patrolling the

          9  developments themselves, and how they are

         10  approaching the residents themselves.  I hear all

         11  the time, people, elderly people that are sitting on

         12  the benches within a complex.  Or I hear about young

         13  people that are within the developments that they

         14  live in, that are approached, and they're asked and

         15  questioned as to whether they live there.  What are

         16  they doing there?  Very discourteous exchanges.

         17  Rude exchanges.  That's what I'm hearing.  And more

         18  often than not, it's particularly  --  it's not the

         19  precincts themselves.  I'm talking about

         20  specifically PSAs.  The concerns, overwhelming

         21  complaints that I get in my office are about the

         22  exchanges and the lack of respect that the officers

         23  are when they're doing their rounds.

         24                 So I just want to raise these

         25  concerns which I have, and I'm very actively
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          2  involved at all levels within my district on these

          3  matters.

          4                 I do have specific questions with

          5  regards to your testimony, and just some questions

          6  about some issues here.  The vertical patrols.  Are

          7  those done in terms of the timing of them? Are they

          8  they same time every day?  Or are they random?  Are

          9  they changed up and switched up?

         10                 CHIEF JAFFE: They're not the same

         11  time every day.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Okay.

         13  They're not the same time every day.  Because I

         14  heard one person talking about the verticals and

         15  that they seem to happen every day, and I would

         16  think that that would counteract what you're trying

         17  to do.

         18                 CHIEF JAFFE: No, and not every

         19  building nor every development has officers doing

         20  vertical patrols.  We're fluid and mobile, and we do

         21  them at different times, 24- hours a day, seven days

         22  a week, at different locations.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Okay.

         24  The other issue, Impact zones.  Because you

         25  mentioned three Impact zones, but then you talk
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          2  about an additional three that are I guess based on

          3  the crime statistics.  So the three Impact zones

          4  that are in PSA Two, PSA Seven, PSA Five.  These are

          5  permanent?

          6                 CHIEF JAFFE: Those are  --  I'm not

          7  sure what you first said.  Those are three Impact

          8  zones.  Those are our three Impact zones.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: So

         10  those don't vary depending on crime statistics.

         11  Those are constant.

         12                 CHIEF JAFFE: No. They will vary.

         13  They get reassessed all the time.  To make a

         14  determination.  PSA Two and PSA Seven started in, I

         15  believe, January of '03.  There are some Impact

         16  zones in the City that have been dismantled and

         17  they're in a maintenance phase.  And there are new

         18  Impact zones. PSA Five, 112th to 115th Street, First

         19  Avenue to Lenox Avenue  --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Yes,

         21  that's me.

         22                 CHIEF JAFFE: That's a newly

         23  designated Impact zone, as a result of crime and a

         24  variety of variables that have been identified.  So

         25  just to answer your question, no Impact zone is
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          2  fixed permanently.  It's reassessed constantly.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Okay.

          4  Well I wanted to get to the  --  just looking at

          5  your testimony, it says, "currently operates three

          6  Impact zones that help to prevent crime efforts".

          7  Then the second  --  the paragraph below that says,

          8   "In addition, there's three geographic Impact

          9  zones"  --  "In addition, there are three newly

         10  formed Housing Bureau Impact Response Teams, each

         11  assigned to Housing Bureau, deployed by the Borough

         12  Commander based on crime trends".  So there seems to

         13  be a distinction in terms of you know  --

         14                 CHIEF JAFFE: Different groups of

         15  officers. Different teams.  Different concepts that

         16  we're talking about. Similar but different.  There's

         17  three Impact zones  --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: So all

         19  Impact zones are based on looking at the statistics.

         20

         21                 CHIEF JAFFE: There's three Impact

         22  zones that officers get assigned to every day.

         23  Okay?  So for your development --  Jefferson,

         24  Johnson, Taft, and King  --  those officers assigned

         25  to PSA Five Impact zone go out and go out there
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          2  every day.  Besides that, in housing borough

          3  Manhattan, under Inspector Fibbs, there is

          4  approximately 50 police officers that are in a task

          5  force, separate from the Impact zone, and they're

          6  called IRT.  And our three geographical boroughs

          7  have an IRT.  And they're like a task force. And

          8  that Borough Commander will decide, today I want you

          9  on the Lower East Side.  Because we want to do this

         10  initiative.  So in Manhattan, Inspector Fibbs will

         11  say, today you're going to work in PSA Four in the

         12  Lower East Side.  And he's going to coordinate with

         13  PSA Four commander.  And then tomorrow he could say,

         14  I want you in Polo Grounds in the 32.  So they work

         15  all over the borough of Manhattan, based on crime

         16  trends, community complaints, community concerns,

         17  narcotic complaints.  All the information that comes

         18  to us at community meetings, we want to react to it

         19  and be proactive. Those are our task force mobile,

         20  fluid units.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Okay.

         22  No, I appreciate that.  The last thing that I will

         23  mention was  --  I want to understand a little bit

         24  more about how the precincts interact with the PSAs

         25  and their overlap.  Let me explain to you. I was
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          2  going down Lexington Avenue, 110th Street.  I live a

          3  block away.  Clinton Houses.  There was an incident

          4  one night where I literally saw I would say safely

          5  30 to 35 officers.  I was alarmed. And I went up to

          6  one of the officers.  I asked who was in charge. I

          7  showed them my badge.  I explained to them who I

          8  was.  I was not --  I thought I was disrespected, in

          9  terms of how I was approached. That's another issue.

         10    But I questioned as to why there were so many cops

         11  at the scene.  It was basically a brawl between two

         12  tenants.  You know.  And it ended up being that the

         13  23rd precinct. And the PSA both had been deployed to

         14  Clinton Houses.  That concerns me.  Because I think

         15   --  I would  --  am I safe to assume that if this

         16  incident were not to have occurred in a public

         17  housing development, would you have a case where the

         18  PSA and the precinct are deployed to a tenement

         19  building or a house that is not in a development?

         20  Does that happen?

         21                 CHIEF JAFFE: Just  --  chances are,

         22  an incident like that, a brawl, is going to  --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: No, I

         24  understand.  But let me ask a question.  If you're

         25  saying  --  because I was told that when it comes to
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          2  public housing developments, you can have both the

          3  precinct and the PSA deploy officers simultaneously

          4  to one incident.  That to me would alarm me, because

          5  that again increases the stigma that is attached to

          6  people, residents of public housing. Why would that

          7  incident be treated differently than  --  you're not

          8  going to have a PSA and a precinct responding if I

          9  have an incident in my building.  I mean, why would

         10  that  --  explain that to me.

         11                 CHIEF JAFFE: The most serious

         12  complaints, those crimes in progress, where we need

         13  to immediately respond, because it's a robbery in

         14  progress, because it's an assault in progress, we

         15  are going to get dispatched, as will the patrol

         16  precinct, the corresponding patrol precinct, and

         17  both cops may respond, because we want those initial

         18  first officers to get there to protect the citizens.

         19    So you most definitely may have a PSA, if it's a

         20  robbery in progress.  Someone just got robbed.

         21  We're now  --  we need to get the police there right

         22  away.  We need to get a description.  We need to

         23  find witnesses.  We need to make sure the victim is

         24  okay. The victim is alive.  Of course you're going

         25  to have a Housing cop, whether it's on housing or
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          2  not.  If it's in the street, the Housing cops may

          3  respond.  It's really a matter of logistics, and

          4  it's a crime in progress.  It's an immediate

          5  response that is needed by the Police Department.

          6  So we back each other up.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Does

          8  that happen consistently, where PSA officers are

          9  deployed in areas that are not housing developments?

         10                 CHIEF JAFFE: What happens

         11  consistently is that the bureaus back each other up.

         12    We back each other up on radio runs, especially

         13  crimes in progress.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Right.

         15    And then I just wanted  --  the last thing and I'm

         16  done, is I want to go back just to what I opened up

         17  with, with regards to the protocol.  And can I get a

         18  commitment that the PSAs within my district, and I

         19  would hope that it's the same across for all

         20  colleagues of mine, that we will be getting calls

         21  when an incident does occur within our district?

         22                 CHIEF JAFFE: You should be getting

         23  calls for very serious incidents.  I'm going to

         24  review the protocol.  In terms of every shooting, or

         25  every shots fired, I don't know if you want to get
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          2  called, but I will review it, and I will get back to

          3  you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: At

          5  least with regards to  --  when you talk about the

          6  incident in Frederick Douglas, I should have gotten

          7  a call.

          8                 CHIEF JAFFE: Absolutely.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: I

         10  think that also, on incidents like the ones in the

         11  East River Houses, I should have gotten a call.

         12  Well I did actually  --  let me take that one back.

         13  I did get a call on that.  I will take that one

         14  back.  But the one in Lehman Village this weekend,

         15  we did not.  I think  --  you know, I would

         16  personally, in every shooting in my community, in my

         17  district, I do want to get a call.  I want to know

         18  every shooting that happens.

         19                 CHIEF JAFFE: I will review it.  I

         20  will make sure  --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: And

         22  unfortunately, we have been having a rise in them.

         23  That's you know, that's a real issue.  But I

         24  appreciate your testimony.  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you
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          2  Council Member.  I'm sure you would like to go into

          3  those issues in much more detail, but because of our

          4  time constraints, we now no longer can.  We have at

          5  least two more Council Members, plus the Chairwoman,

          6  who has yet to ask questions.  Plus four panels who

          7  are patiently waiting to testify.  And all of us

          8  will now be rushed.  So Council Member Oddo.  Thank

          9  you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Chair.  And part of the way through, Council Member

         12  Barron especially, and I was going to make a light-

         13  hearted comment and say that I'd like to put in a

         14  bid for those police officers that he doesn't want.

         15  But since the tone of the questioning was very

         16  serious, I don't mean to minimize it.  I think it

         17  was a very serious exchange.  But Charles's

         18  questionning did serve to remind me that there are

         19  very different realities in each of our

         20  developments. The reality that I have for the two

         21  developments that I represent is far different than

         22  Charles'.  But it's a challenge nonetheless.  And

         23  frankly, the frustration for the Council Member for

         24  the 50th District for the last decade and a half,

         25  myself and my predecessor has been, we are
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          2  continually told that we represent two of the best

          3  developments on Staten Island, and the best in the

          4  City.  And I often wonder what the reaction of the

          5  NYCHA folks and the NYPD folks, what their reactions

          6  are when they get letters from me, they must scratch

          7  their heads and say, you know, Oddo, if you only

          8  knew what the realities are in other districts, you

          9  wouldn't be complaining.  And I understand that, and

         10  I appreciate that.  But it's real frustrating to

         11  whenever there's a widget, the widget gets divided

         12  and it really doesn't come to my district.  And the

         13  reality is for me and for my constituents, life in

         14  the Berry Houses and life in South Beach Houses in

         15  2006 is very different than it was in 1996 or 2000,

         16  or 2004.  And so while I don't have the same

         17  challenges that Charles spoke about, or Tish, or

         18  Melissa, I have some very real concerns.  And I have

         19  two specific questions about those concerns.

         20                 The first is, with respect to the

         21  video cameras. We just re- allocated $800,000 to do

         22  four buildings in Berry and four buildings in South

         23  Beach.  If I understood you Doug, you said that

         24  we're looking at an 18- month period.  Is that

         25  specifically for those developments?  Or is it

                                                            90

          1  PUBLIC SAFETY AND PUBLIC HOUSING

          2  possible my development will be done sooner than 18

          3  months?

          4                 MR. APPLE: What I was saying is for

          5  the entirety of what we're doing now, which are 23

          6  developments across the City, it will be by the end

          7  of 2007.  Your developments, South Beach and Berry

          8  are both in that schedule, and I can get you the

          9  exact dates. I know they're going to happen in 2007.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay.  I'd

         11  appreciate that, because you know, this is  --  we

         12  had hoped for VIPER a long time ago.  Well before I

         13  was in office.  And I'll take the small scale,

         14  because I'm  --  like the Chair, I'm a strong

         15  believer, and I've done  -- installed them in my

         16  schools, and the folks in my developments are

         17  anxious to have them.

         18                 I guess the second very specific

         19  question, and this goes to the Chief, you know,

         20  there was a somewhat controversial decision made

         21  this year, infolding the Staten Island Housing Unit

         22  and taking those officers and putting them in the

         23  specific precincts.  And I'm not sure if your

         24  equipped  --  if I should be directing it towards

         25  another chief, or if you could comment on that.  But
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          2  I was just wondering, have you done any oversight of

          3  that?  And what are your findings to date?

          4                 CHIEF JAFFE: I believe since we did

          5  that in April, crime in the development there,

          6  between the 120 and the 122 is down about 33

          7  percent, which is a significant reduction.  Some of

          8  the people  --  we do some oversight.  We've reached

          9  out to some community people just to see how it's

         10  been going.  I know Chief Estevillo (phonetic) who

         11  oversees you know, patrol borough State Island does

         12  some oversight.  We have gotten overall positive

         13  feedback.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay. Can I get

         15  those  --  a breakdown of those numbers from you?

         16  Or do I have to go to another chief?  The breakdown

         17  of the decrease since April.

         18                 CHIEF JAFFE: Yes.  You could get them

         19  through me.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay.  Thank

         21  you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         23  Council Member Addabbo.  Oh, he could not wait,

         24  unfortunately, for his turn. Again, because of a

         25  fellow Council Member.  So now, Council Member
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          2  Foster was here, so I guess I'll introduce her and

          3  go to our Chair to ask some questions.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: I guess it's good

          5  afternoon now. I have a lot of questions.  Some of

          6  them having to deal with implications with the

          7  budget and with capital.  And there are a little

          8  over 1,800 officers right now that are part of the

          9  Housing Unit.  Is that correct?

         10                 CHIEF JAFFE: Yes.  Uniformed members

         11  of the service, all uniformed members.  Not just

         12  officers, bosses also.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: How many of those

         14  are individuals who would be stationed at One Police

         15  Plaza?  Or have special duties that are not patrol

         16  of those 1,800 odd officers?

         17                 CHIEF JAFFE: Stationed at One Police

         18  Plaza is my office, and I would say you know, less

         19  than 25 people, both civilian and uniformed members

         20  of the service are assigned to my office.  In terms

         21  of PSAs, I don't have the percentage to give you

         22  right now.  I'd have to get back to you on that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: And how many of

         24  those officers of these 1,800 odd offices, minus the

         25  25, how does that break down per PSA?
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          2                 CHIEF JAFFE: Like in terms of

          3  numbers?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Yes.

          5                 CHIEF JAFFE: For uniformed members of

          6  the service, a PSA could be anywhere  --  and I'm

          7  just giving approximation  -- 125 to over 200

          8  uniformed members of the service assigned to it.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: And are they

         10  stationed at particular developments?  Or they just

         11  cover the whole PSA?

         12                 CHIEF JAFFE: It would be up to the

         13  PSA commanding officer to make that determination.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: And regarding the

         15    --  what did you call them?  The IRTs.  Are those

         16  considered part of these 1,800?  Or is that part of

         17  the NYPD numbers?

         18                 CHIEF JAFFE: No.  They are part of

         19  the 1,800 that are assigned to me that are assigned

         20  to the Housing Bureau.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: We've heard a lot

         22  about vertical patrols.  I'm also interested in

         23  knowing about patrolling on the grounds.  How often

         24  does that go on?  And do they do both?  Or a certain

         25  deployment just for patrolling the grounds?
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          2                 CHIEF JAFFE: They do both.  You'll

          3  have  --  we like to have a lot of foot officers.

          4  They're visible.  They could go inside the

          5  buildings.  But they're not only required to do

          6  vertical patrols.  They're also inspecting the

          7  grounds, the parks, the courtyards, the rear doors,

          8  et cetera.  And we also have officers that are

          9  assigned to RMPs, or Radio Motor Patrol, so they

         10  could respond to an emergency, you know, as quickly

         11  as possible.  So again, it's a mixture.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: And those ground

         13  patrols, are they on foot?  Or are they on vehicles

         14  or scooters of some kind?

         15                 CHIEF MENDEZ: Both.  All.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Now can you talk

         17  me through the protocol and procedure as to when it

         18  is determined that a precinct or a PSA is covering a

         19  particular development or a particular incident at a

         20  development?

         21                 CHIEF JAFFE: I'm not sure of your

         22  question.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Okay.  So there's

         24  a group of youth hanging out on one of the

         25  development grounds.  Someone calls it in because
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          2  they're being very noisy.  Who responds?

          3                 CHIEF JAFFE: It it's on housing

          4  grounds, the Housing officers assigned to that area

          5  will respond.  So it will go to  -- if it goes

          6  through 911, it will go to radio dispatch and a

          7  sector car, or if there are foot officers there,

          8  they would be dispatched to respond to it.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: And let's say it

         10  occurs across the street from the development

         11  grounds, in a tenement or another City block; who

         12  responds?

         13                 CHIEF JAFFE: It would be responded to

         14  by that precinct. If it's across the street, by and

         15  large.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Okay.  I happen

         17  to be an advocate of housing police because I

         18  believe that it is like community policing.  And all

         19  the housing police that I know have very good

         20  relationship with the tenants and the tenants

         21  association.  However, what I've been getting

         22  complaints about are very different.  I have our

         23  youth in my developments are being harassed.  Are

         24  being asked for ID just because they're hanging out

         25  in front of the development or on grounds.  And it's
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          2  not  --  when I questioned individuals, my

          3  constituents, it seems like it's the precinct police

          4  that are responding to this.  I've had one of my

          5  community activists questioned in her building as

          6  she was talking to a neighbor and smoking in the

          7  hallway.  Questioned, and it was the Seventh

          8  precinct that was doing the vertical patrol.  I've

          9  had one of my great community leaders, who is a

         10  tenant president at one development, very well-

         11  known by everyone in the community, standing on a

         12  street corner and told by the Ninth precinct

         13  officers to move it along.

         14                 So if this is what the respected

         15  individuals in our community, who are well- known,

         16  then the average youth, what their interaction is,

         17  is much worse.  And by all accounts, it's the NYPD

         18  who are going into the developments and it's not PSA

         19  Four.  And from my information, I know like at the

         20  13th precinct, I have one development there that is

         21  patrolled by the 13th precinct.  But my experience

         22  is at Jacob Reiss and Lillian Wald, and Baruch

         23  Houses, and Gompers Houses, it's that it's the local

         24  precincts going in there.

         25                 CHIEF JAFFE: Well by an large, the
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          2  majority of the calls are definitely handled in PSA

          3  Four in those developments you just mentioned by PSA

          4  officers.  That's not to say that at times, the

          5  Fifth precinct, Seventh precinct, the Ninth

          6  precinct, may respond to a housing development to

          7  either answer a radio run, you know, address a

          8  complaint in the community, or do proactive

          9  policing.  We do share in that.  All the commanding

         10  officers have very, very clear policies, and the

         11  Police Department has clear policies in terms of how

         12  to treat the public.  You know.  And unfortunately,

         13  for the precinct people, they may not be as familiar

         14  with some of those tenant leaders that you just

         15  mentioned as the PSA would be, or vice versa.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: So why is that?

         17  Is there no kind of interaction or training for

         18  those precincts when they will be responding to

         19  these developments, that they should know who some

         20  of these individuals are?  Or come to some of our

         21  tenant meetings. Because these are the individuals

         22  who are working with the tenant patrol.  They're

         23  working with the PSA Four and with the local

         24  precinct council.

         25                 CHIEF JAFFE: You know, we do do that.
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          2    And I agree with you.  Like we'll have a community

          3  council meeting.  We always invite the precinct

          4  commanding officer, and we'll invite a couple of

          5  police officers.  But it's never everybody.  And so

          6  the majority don't get the opportunity to meet at

          7  these various meetings, to meet whether it be the

          8  Housing you know, the PSA officers or the precinct

          9  police officers.  But we do try to do that

         10  interchange. And support and encourage it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: So the 1,800

         12  officers are all under your direct supervision.

         13                 CHIEF JAFFE: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Let me ask you,

         15  during the budget hearings, it was stated that under

         16  the Memorandum of Understanding between what was

         17  then  --  when the merger occurred between the

         18  Housing Authority Police Department and the NYPD,

         19  NYCHA pays $73- or $74 million to the NYPD.  Is that

         20  money based solely for salaries?  Or are there other

         21  expenses?  And what would those be?

         22                 MR. APPLE: The $73 million that the

         23  Housing Authority provides to the Police Department

         24  is really exclusively for the salaries of the

         25  officers that work within the bureau.  And I would
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          2  point out that that's obviously, just a portion of

          3  the total cost of the bureau.  Obviously, there are

          4  costs above that that the Housing Authority does not

          5  pay for.  We do not pay for the entire cost of the

          6  Housing Bureau.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: So it's just

          8  salaries,  Fringe, and other stuff like pensions

          9  would be covered by the NYPD?

         10                 MR. APPLE: Essentially, it's a  --

         11  this is a relationship that actually predates

         12  merger.  Before the merger occurred, the New York

         13  City gave the NYCHA money for the Housing Authority

         14  police.  Post merger,   --  and at that point, the

         15  City paid for part of the cost, and NYCHA paid for

         16  part of the cost. After merger, we gave  --  NYCHA

         17  gave money to the City for a portion of the costs of

         18  the Housing Bureau.  So it's a relationship that's

         19  existed for actually more than 30 years.  Long

         20  predated merger, and really has continued up to this

         21  day.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: How about patrol

         23  cars  --  I see a lot of officers on bicycles and

         24  scooters.  Who pays for that?

         25                 MR. APPLE: There is a separate
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          2  allocation out of our capital fund.  We get, as you

          3  know, two primary funding streams for public

          4  housing.  We just talked about the operating dollars

          5  we get that goes to the Housing Bureau for salaries

          6  of officers.  We also get a capital allocation from

          7  the federal government.  A very small portion of

          8  that, roughly $5 million a year or so, goes to the

          9  Housing Bureau for capital things.  So we've used it

         10  to build new PSAs, a new PSA in your district as you

         11  know, that just opened a few years ago.  For

         12  vehicles.  For computers.  For cameras.  So for

         13  capital items, we use a portion of our  --  again,

         14  it's a use of our capital funds to support the

         15  Housing Bureau because that supports the rest of the

         16  public housing.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: When you say

         18   "cameras", we're talking about the VIPER and the

         19  CCTV?

         20                 MR. APPLE: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Okay.  Since we

         22  mentioned the new PSA Four building in my district,

         23  I'd like to ask some questions about that, and just

         24  get a little central, but then figure out how that's

         25  applicable more Citywide.
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          2                 Did NYCHA pay for the construction of

          3  that building on Avenue C?

          4                 MR. APPLE: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: For the complete

          6  construction.

          7                 MR. APPLE: It was prior to my tenure,

          8  but yes, as far as I know, we paid for the costs of

          9  the PSA.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: And currently,

         11  the Ninth precinct is sharing space with PSA Four

         12  there.  So is the NYPD paying any rent?  Or they're

         13  just residing there while their precinct gets built?

         14                 MR. APPLE: No.  They're not paying

         15  any rent.  And frankly, I believe by them being in

         16  the PSA, that gives residents of public housing the

         17  benefit of a little extra support.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Now, the Ninth

         19  precinct is getting ready to move out to their old

         20  NYPD Blue digs.   What is going to happen with the

         21  space there at PSA Four?

         22                 CHIEF JAFFE: I'm unsure of that.

         23  That will be determined by a unit within the Police

         24  Department, who allocates space.  And they will be

         25  you know, reviewing that and making an evaluation.
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          2  And then we can get back to you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: I'm very

          4  interested, because it is a large building.  And

          5  it's adequately housing the Ninth precinct and PSA

          6  Four, so I'd be interested in knowing what would

          7  come to that building.

          8                 And all the PSA buildings in the

          9  City, were they built with NYCHA capital money?

         10                 MR. APPLE: From my memory, I believe

         11  we built seven new PSAs.  We  have a couple more

         12  still on the boards in the coming years.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Now the incident

         14  that happened in Council Member Tish James's

         15  district.  As I understood it, he was a sergeant,

         16  but he was regular NYPD?  Or was he part of the

         17  Housing Bureau?

         18                 CHIEF JAFFE: We're all regular NYPD.

         19  The merger occurred.  He was part of the Recruitment

         20  Section, which is under the Personnel Bureau.  You

         21  know, there's different bureaus in the Police

         22  Department.  So he was just assigned to another

         23  bureau.  He was assigned to the Recruitment

         24  Division, which is just a separate bureau from

         25  patrol, and a separate bureau from the Housing
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          2  Bureau.             CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Okay.  So

          3  there were  --  there are other officers there who

          4  were not part of the Housing Bureau, who were

          5  stationed in the development at that location?

          6                 CHIEF JAFFE: They actually have an

          7  office.  The Recruitment Section of the New York

          8  City Police Department has an office built into that

          9  development.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Under the MoU

         11  that was signed in 1994, it's  --  let's see if I

         12  have it in here.  If I could remember.

         13  Specifically.  Well anyway, I can't find it right

         14  now, but it states  --  here it is.  It states,

         15   "whereas in addition to the services currently

         16  provided to all the residents of the City, the City

         17  will perform specialized supplemental and/or

         18  dedicated services for the benefit of the residents

         19  of public housing". Maybe this is just a view of

         20  someone who is not in the system, who just lives

         21  near public housing and is not in the Police

         22  Department. But it seems to me that after the

         23  merger, that actually services went down.  I mean, I

         24  certainly don't see the Housing Police or the

         25  Housing Bureau officers around as much as I used to
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          2  prior to the merger.  Would you  --  from everything

          3  that you know, are they exactly the same?  Or have

          4  they been improved?  And are these specialized

          5  services some of the Impact zones that you've been

          6  talking about earlier?

          7                 CHIEF JAFFE: Some of the specialized

          8  services are the other bureaus that do major cases

          9  and proactive police work in the housing development

         10  that I talked about before, like Narcotics, like

         11  Gang, like Warrants.  You know, all the different

         12  operations that we do, and case take- downs that we

         13  do.

         14                 CHIEF MENDEZ: And are there as much

         15  or more officers now assigned to the Housing Bureau

         16  as there was under the Housing Authority Police

         17  Department prior to the merger?

         18                 CHIEF JAFFE: There are less, but

         19  that's because there were detectives, and emergency

         20  service that was assigned to the Housing Police

         21  Department prior to the merge.  And those offices

         22  were reassigned to a bureau at that point, under the

         23  NYPD. And so therefore, there are less as compared

         24  to that number prior to '94.

         25                 CHIEF MENDEZ: Okay.  And getting back
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          2  to some of the capital questions.  Unmarked

          3  vehicles.  Does NYCHA pay for the unmarked vehicles

          4  that are used by the Housing Bureau or the NYPD in

          5  these developments?

          6                 MR. APPLE: We actually just  --  the

          7  Board of the Housing Authority just actually

          8  approved a resolution to buy a certain number of

          9  those type of vehicles.  And there might be a mix of

         10  others that aren't paid for by us, but I do know we

         11  do in case, buy them for the bureau.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Okay.  I'm going

         13  to just give Council Member Tish James, if she has

         14  any questions, the opportunity to ask them.  And

         15  just if you heard a little something before, it

         16  appears we only have this room until one pm, but

         17  we've made arrangements, which I think at least for

         18  the public, we will be moving next door whenever

         19  that happens to make room for the next hearing

         20  that's going to be held here.  So I just wanted to

         21  let everyone know.  Council Member James.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I just drafted,

         23  while I was sitting here, a letter to Senator

         24  Schumer, asking that he sponsor another initiative

         25  to focus on getting federal dollars for public

                                                            106

          1  PUBLIC SAFETY AND PUBLIC HOUSING

          2  housing, as he did with getting federal dollars for

          3  bodegos.  And I outlined a number of incidents in my

          4  district and all of the incidents that were

          5  mentioned in the report that was prepared by staff.

          6  I did not know that Senator Schumer spearheaded that

          7  initiative, and I would hope that he watches Channel

          8  74.  I would hope that he would do the same thing

          9  for public housing.  There is an increase in crime,

         10  and we desperately need it, and the residents of

         11  public housing desperately need these cameras.  So

         12  if anyone has a close and personal relationship with

         13  Senator Schumer, let him know that I'm looking for

         14  him, and I'll be sending a letter to him and also

         15  placing a call.

         16                 Back to Whitman, and back to the

         17  incident again that happened last night where a 24-

         18  year old gentleman lost his life, and the sergeant

         19  who was shot, and there were two individuals who

         20  were involved in that incident as well.  The

         21  sergeant was coming from a recruitment office.  That

         22  recruitment officer is in Whitman. Does the   --

         23  and one would think that given the fact that there

         24  was a recruitment office in Whitman public housing,

         25  given all of the officers or the cadets, that there
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          2  would be a sense of calm and peace.  One would think

          3  so.  But unfortunately, the residents, the officers,

          4  and the cadets just basically come and go.  They do

          5  not play the role of  --  they do not police Whitman

          6  or Ingersol. They basically exit that building and

          7  go to their vehicles and leave.  Is there any

          8  effort, or any thoughts about perhaps utilizing the

          9  cadets more to police Whitman and/or Ingersol?

         10                 CHIEF JAFFE: Well I think that's

         11  clearly not true in terms of the sergeant that was

         12  shot two times, and walked into one young man

         13  executing another man.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: He was off duty

         15  and he was walking to his car.

         16                 CHIEF JAFFE: Absolutely.  And

         17  proactively got involved in a horrendous incident.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Well only

         19  because allegedly, these gentlemen  --  he had his

         20  gun out and he was about to execute another

         21  gentleman, according to the media reports.  But my

         22  point is, is that you know, they basically exit the

         23  building on Auburn Place and walk to their vehicles

         24  parked on Auburn Place.  Had this incident happened

         25  around the corner, he would not have been there. So
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          2  the question is whether or not there is any

          3  initiative, any thoughts of using the cadets to

          4  patrol the areas besides Auburn Place to again,

          5  police the community?

          6                 CHIEF JAFFE: Our cadets, by and

          7  large, don't patrol areas.  They assist us in

          8  working inside, and they're learning about the

          9  Police Department.  From what I know, there is no

         10  thought about using people that are stationed

         11  somewhere to in addition to their function in that

         12  unit, do patrol work.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: How many

         14  officers actually engage in community patrolling?

         15  Street patrols.

         16                 CHIEF JAFFE: It's a large portion of

         17  the 1,800 uniformed members of the service that are

         18  assigned to the Housing Bureau.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: That actually

         20  walk the public housing?

         21                 CHIEF JAFFE: Walk or are in RMPs, as

         22  described before.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And RMPs are?

         24                 CHIEF JAFFE: Radio Motor Patrol.  I'm

         25  sorry.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: How many do you

          3  know are assigned to Ingersol and Whitman?  Do you

          4  have that information?

          5                 CHIEF JAFFE: I don't have that

          6  information, but it's not a set number.  It is

          7  fluid.  So one day, if the IRTs assign there, the

          8  Impact Response Team, you could have 50 officers

          9  assigned there.  Another day, at a different hour,

         10  you could have four officers assigned there.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Now it's my

         12  understanding that again, in public housing, you

         13  have several different units.  You have a Gang Unit,

         14  Drug Unit, Snow.  You have local precincts.  You

         15  have PSA Three.  You have the Warrant squad.  The

         16  list  --  you have Domestic Violence.  The list goes

         17  on and on and on.  Is there any coordination amongst

         18  all of these different units?

         19                 CHIEF JAFFE: Some of those units that

         20  you just spoke about are not assigned to PSA Three.

         21  Some of those units are subunits of PSA Three.  But

         22  others are different bureaus.  And yes, we work very

         23  closely to coordinate all of our strategies in

         24  policing in general, because we don't want you know,

         25  safety issues to occur.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: But oftentimes,

          3  it's my experience that when one engages or executes

          4  a No Knock warrant, and when I ask a question to my

          5  local commanding officer, he knows nothing about it,

          6  because that warrant squad does not come under his

          7  jurisdiction.

          8                 CHIEF JAFFE: The Warrant squad is not

          9  executing a search warrant.  It's different policies

         10  from when we execute search warrants, as compared to

         11  arrest warrants.  The search warrant policies are

         12  that the commanding officer in the jurisdiction of

         13  that area will be notified prior to the execution of

         14  a search warrant.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So whenever

         16  there's any police initiative, is it your testimony

         17  that the commanding officer is aware of what is

         18  happening within his jurisdiction?

         19                 CHIEF JAFFE: No.  I said that in

         20  relation to search warrants.  When Warrants come in,

         21  the commanding officer may know that there is a

         22  warrant initiative that is going on, but Warrants

         23  goes out every day, and they're all over the City.

         24  And they're executing arrest warrants, and a

         25  commanding officer may definitely not know that that
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          2  Warrant squad is in his or her area or jurisdiction

          3  for that day, at that time.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: What commanding

          5  officer is aware of all of the initiatives that are

          6  occurring within a certain jurisdiction?  Is there

          7  one commanding officer that I can call and say,

          8  there was an incident at Atlantic Terminal.  I need

          9  more information?   Oftentimes, again, the

         10  commanding officer is unaware. Who can I call?

         11                 CHIEF JAFFE: If it's in Atlantic

         12  Terminal, I would definitely call the PSA Three

         13  commanding officer.  That's housing within PSA

         14  Three.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And PSA Three,

         16  I think his name is McGinnis, he's a new  --

         17                 CHIEF JAFFE: Captain McGinn.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: McGinn.

         19                 CHIEF JAFFE: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: He would be

         21  aware of initiatives.

         22                 CHIEF JAFFE: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.  And

         24  again  --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member,
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          2  we have the room until one.  Four more panels.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: One last

          4  question.  Again, getting back to training.  Again,

          5  I was on Myrtle Avenue last night.  Ran into an

          6  incident where I had to avert a riot.  A sergeant

          7  allegedly called an individual who was pregnant an

          8  animal. That sparked a  --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Council Member,

         10  the specific incidents in your district.  This is

         11  not the purpose of this hearing.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I understand.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I know they're

         14  very important to you, but you can set up a hearing.

         15    I'm sure they'll meet with you any time to discuss

         16  those.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So the question

         18  is training. The question is training to deal with

         19  again, CPR.  Respect, Courtesy, and something.

         20                 CHIEF JAFFE: There is a lot of

         21  training in the New York City Police Department.

         22  There's proactive monitoring of police officers.

         23  There's a variety of training.  There's a monitoring

         24  program with different levels that certain police

         25  officers, if they fall within a criteria, are put
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          2  into and monitored more closely, both by the

          3  commanding officer and by another unit in the Police

          4  Department.  There's as I said, proactive,

          5  interactive testing that goes on all the time.  Some

          6  of it random, some of it targeted.  There's a lot of

          7  training.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you

         10  Council Member. Again, I'm sorry the time

         11  constraints we're under right now.  Not your fault.

         12  Oh, after you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: I'm sorry.  I

         14  just have a few quick questions, and I thank you for

         15  your patience.

         16                 In your testimony, on page two, you

         17  say, they're patrolled by precinct personnel,

         18  including a dedicated housing team in each precinct.

         19    What does that mean, a housing team?

         20                 CHIEF JAFFE: You know, I talked about

         21  the housing restructuring in certain areas of the

         22  Bronx.  In PSA Seven and Eight.  And it also has now

         23  occurred in Manhattan.  So for example, it happened

         24  in the 13th precinct, in your district.  In those

         25  smaller developments, that are far away, much less
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          2  crime plagued, not in core crime areas, we have

          3  reassigned some housing police officers to those

          4  corresponding precincts.  And they work in

          5  coordination with that precinct, and they're

          6  deployed to the housing developments within that

          7  precinct.  And they're called the Housing Team of

          8  that precinct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: And they also

         10  coordinate with the Housing Bureau.  Even though

         11  they're stationed at the precinct, and are

         12  patrolling the development?

         13                 CHIEF JAFFE: That precinct commander

         14  is now responsible for everything that goes on,

         15  including that housing development, or those

         16  developments within his or her jurisdiction.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: And is --

         18                 CHIEF JAFFE: So they now work for

         19  that precinct commander.  That's the restructuring

         20  in some specific areas.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: And is there any

         22  coordination between those precinct commanders where

         23  this reassignment has happened and yourself?

         24                 CHIEF JAFFE: Yes.  Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Okay.  And they
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          2  get any other additional training in this Housing

          3  Team that maybe officers in the Housing Bureau would

          4  get?

          5                 CHIEF JAFFE: Initially, the people

          6  that are reassigned under the restructuring, are

          7  housing police officers. So they're already trained.

          8    That was the purpose of reassigning police

          9  officers to the precincts.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Okay.  A personal

         11  interest to me.  With the VIPER and the CCTVs, are

         12  they monitored for individuals who are permanently

         13  excluded from leases, who are violating their

         14  agreement not to be on development ground?

         15                 CHIEF JAFFE: No.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Okay.  And our

         17  research shows that the Civilian Complaint Review

         18  Board has logged many complaints --  complaints were

         19  logged against police officers.  Are these

         20  complaints with the a CCRB, are they tracked as to

         21  whether they're --  the Housing Bureau or coming

         22  from a precinct?

         23                 CHIEF JAFFE: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Okay.  And is

         25  that information made available to us, as to how
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          2  those complaints come in?

          3                 CHIEF JAFFE: Through the CCRB report,

          4  that's published I think yearly?  Semi- annually.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: And we were just

          6  informed that prior to this calendar year, we would

          7  get reporting of crime statistics by precinct, and

          8  by PSAs, but now we're only being provided that

          9  number by precincts.  Are we still privy to get that

         10  information by PSA?

         11                 (UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER): Council

         12  Member, if you're referring to the quarterly report

         13  to the Council, that report includes as a subset of

         14  the crime complaints coming to each precinct, the

         15  number of complaints related to housing.  So that

         16  was always the understanding.  That is what the law

         17  provides for. There was never a representation that

         18  I'm aware of, that the crimes would be aggregated by

         19  PSA.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Well I can check

         21  with staff later, but I was told that we used to get

         22  it by precincts and PSA. But I could follow up with

         23  you at another time.

         24                 So I want to thank you for your

         25  testimony, and thank everyone for their patience.
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          2  And turn it back over to Chair Vallone.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.  I'd

          4  like to welcome Frederick Douglass Academy, from the

          5  Upper West Side of Manhattan. Welcome.  This is a

          6  joint hearing between the Public Safety Committee

          7  and the Committee on Housing.  And that's the

          8  Housing Police Department, basically.  And we're

          9  doing oversight as to what methods they employ to

         10  fight crime, and what problems may occur. So this is

         11  government in action, right here in the greatest

         12  city in the world.  So welcome and thank you for

         13  coming down.

         14                 Yes, we've all got many more

         15  questions, but you've been nice enough to spend your

         16  time past 12 o'clock, and to listen to all of our

         17  questions, so we will follow up with you in writing,

         18  and many of the Council Members have specific

         19  concerns about their district.  I'm sure you'll meet

         20  with them.  But again, I want to thank you for the

         21  job you do every day, keeping citizens throughout

         22  the City safe.  And we look forward to working with

         23  you here as Council Members, to make sure that

         24  happens.

         25                 Let me ask you one last question,
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          2  Chief.  Would you support our initiative to get

          3  federal funding for more cameras in the

          4  developments?

          5                 CHIEF JAFFE: Absolutely.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Oh, there you

          7  go.  Thank you. I almost forgot that part.  All

          8  right, thank you all for coming down, and we look

          9  forward to working with you.

         10                 CHIEF JAFFE: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: The next witness

         12  will be Carmine Annunziato, from the Legal Aid

         13  Society.  Welcome Mr. Annunziato.  Thank you.  They

         14  took my card away.  The floor is yours.

         15                 MR. ANNUNZIATO: Okay. Thank you.  And

         16  thank you for having us, the Legal Aid Society down

         17  to speak about this matter. Our major concern is

         18  NYCHA's $73 million that it spends for this

         19  procedure.  We feel that a lot of this money perhaps

         20  should be closely scrutinized to see if in fact it

         21  is necessary to expend this amount of money.

         22                 We are, as the Legal Aid Society, the

         23  lawyers for many people who cannot afford legal

         24  services, and we represent an enormous amount of

         25  people who come from the Housing Authorities. NYCHA
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          2  tenants.  They are our clientele.  We represent

          3  them.  We speak with them all the time.  And we know

          4  their ins and outs.

          5                 I am a trial lawyer with the Legal

          6  Aid Society. I've been that for 22 years.  I'm not

          7  involved in policy or any making, but I have dealt

          8  with many hundreds of cases over my career.  And I

          9  know from what I speak to them, I know their

         10  concerns about how NYCHA deals with  --  how the

         11  NYCHA handles them.

         12                 And our concern is that NYCHA has a

         13  budget problem. They pay $73 million to the Police

         14  Department for this.  And I would ask the Council to

         15  see if it really is necessary for them  -- or at

         16  least to scrutinize to see if it actually is

         17  necessary for them to spend that money.  Because

         18  they're expenditure of money, and their budget

         19  problems clearly affect our clientele, and I can

         20  tell you numerous occasions where their lack of

         21  money hurts us. And NYCHA does not only public

         22  housing they also fund Section Eight vouchers as

         23  well.  And our office, in the last year or so, last

         24  three or four years, has had an upturn, an increase

         25  of people who have been terminated from Section
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          2  Eight housing.  And we are entitled to look at their

          3  file, and we interview them and then we look at the

          4  NYCHA file.  And we find that they have various

          5  reasons, the most crazy reasons, most insignificant

          6  reasons to be terminated for Section Eight.  They

          7  claim they didn't file a certain paper on time, and

          8  then we have proof that they did.  And we have to

          9  litigate these matters time and time again.

         10                 And they're told, well you can  --

         11  our clients are told, well you can write NYCHA and

         12  see if you can get back on Section Eight.  And time

         13  and time again, we would get letters from NYCHA, or

         14  they would get letters from NYCHA, and they would

         15  show us, and say, we're sorry, we don't have any

         16  funding to put you back on the Section Eight

         17  program.  It is those issues that concern us. Now

         18  their lack of funding affects our clients.

         19                 So how does the $73 million matter

         20  here?  I say that I've heard testimony here today,

         21  this morning, saying there's a lot of duplicity or

         22  duplication of police services for this location. I

         23  understand --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: There's a big

         25  differences in the words "duplicity" and
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          2   "duplication".

          3                 MR. ANNUNZIATO: I'm sorry.

          4  Duplication.  I've heard several of the Members

          5  indicate, which is it, a PSA or is it the precinct?

          6  The precinct comes in, not the PSA.  Are they really

          7  necessary?  Do private  --  if the officer gave

          8  numerous statistics.  She gave out 100,000

          9  summonses.  But let's follow the truth.  What

         10  happened to those summonses?  What happened?  Let's

         11  do a statistical analysis of where those people  --

         12  were those cases dismissed?  Were they dropped?

         13                 I was a Public Defender for 15 years.

         14    I saw many cases come through, and while I handled

         15  my serious matters, I looked at many cases that came

         16  through and I saw that this was just ridiculous.  A

         17  claim of disorderly conduct when the guys are doing

         18  nothing.  And you know, the judges, the cases will

         19  be dismissed and thrown out.  You don't see that

         20  here.  You heard the Inspector, or whatever her rank

         21  was, indicate that there are a lot of arrests made.

         22  But what are they doing with those arrests?  Are

         23  they really stopping crime?  That's the question I

         24  ask this Council to consider.

         25                 I again, I have people brought in for
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          2    --  the craziest one I had was the selling flowers

          3  and they brought it to jail for selling flowers on

          4  the stand.  That's the kind of stuff that I'd ask us

          5  to consider.

          6                 Our big concern also is that I also

          7   --   now I've switched to the Civil Division, and I

          8  handle NYCHA tenants whose tenancies are being

          9  terminated.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.  But

         11  that's not the purpose of this hearing.  Just so you

         12  know.

         13                 MR. ANNUNZIATO: No, but they're  --

         14  I know that. I'm not getting on my soap box for

         15  that.  What I'm trying to say is, I've seen that

         16  some of those people are being brought down because

         17  of police interaction.  And that's what we feel a

         18  lot of the $73 million is being used to fund

         19  termination of tenancies in situation where it's not

         20  warranted.  And I can  --  in my office, myself,

         21  before I came down here, we  --  and we had

         22  discussed several of the cases.   And again, it's

         23  all anecdotal.  And I've done this now for six

         24  years, but I can say that in our office, we've

         25  represented a woman brought down for termination of
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          2  tenancy for her child throwing rice out of a window,

          3  for people who were allegedly trespassing in NYCHA

          4  buildings when they lived in the building.  And the

          5  police were arresting them anyway.  And then they

          6  have to prove that they live there.  And they do

          7  eventually, but maybe they didn't have ID on them at

          8  that one particular minute.

          9                 These are situations we've handled.

         10  And also, and most distressing of all, was NYCHA's

         11  use of domestic violence.  We have a case where the

         12  person would call the police because her husband  --

         13    the NYCHA tenant would call the police because her

         14  husband was beating her.  And they would use that

         15  beating, that incident, against her, to terminate

         16  her tenancy, because she allowed him in the

         17  building.

         18                 It's stuff like that which needs to

         19  be stopped.  And I think I heard a lot of convincing

         20  testimony from  --  and questions from the Council

         21  Members themselves to the Police.  There seems to be

         22  a lot of duplication here.  And it's really not

         23  necessary for NYCHA to spend the $73 million.

         24                 They have  --  the Police Department

         25  has obligation to represent, to cover, to protect
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          2  every landlord in the City. They have the obligation

          3  to protect the building next door to NYCHA.  And the

          4  one after that.  Are there no crime in those

          5  buildings?  They live one block away.  And there's

          6  crime in those buildings too.  And I believe that

          7  they have the obligation to do it.  Is it really

          8  necessary for NYCHA to spend the $73 million? That's

          9  the sense of my testimony.  Thank you very much for

         10  having us.  And that is our position.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.  Okay.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Does Legal Aid,

         13  or individuals within Legal Aid, are they proponents

         14  of community policing?

         15                 MR. ANNUNZIATO: To the extent that

         16   --  what we do in our position, is we always listen

         17  to our clients.  If they're for it, if we feel it

         18  should be up to the public, the tenants themselves.

         19  They should be the ones to decide.  We don't speak

         20  for them in that issue.  But I believe that it

         21  should be up to them to decide if they would like

         22  community policing or video cameras in the

         23  buildings.  That's  --  their lives are being

         24  affected by it, so they should make the

         25  determinations.
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          2                 To the extent that if community

          3  policing leads to unnecessary or duplication of

          4  funds and to the extent that they're not being

          5  funded correctly, then the answer would be obviously

          6  no. It just depends  --  what is really needed is an

          7  analysis of the determination of whether that $73

          8  million, and any other additional funds is being

          9  wisely spent.  And especially when they have budget

         10  cuts and problems.  And our clients are feeling it,

         11  as I just described.  Like getting cut off of

         12  vouchers, or being charged for services in the

         13  public housing.  Now NYCHA has proposed increasing

         14  charging tenants I believe for certain services in

         15  the buildings now. I don't know if that's gone into

         16  affect yet, but I know it's proposed.  It has.  Well

         17  there you go.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Okay.

         19                 MR. ANNUNZIATO: So the question is

         20   --  I think if you save the money there, can you

         21  help the tenants somewhere else. And obviously,

         22  everybody doesn't want to be a victim of a crime or

         23   --  obviously not.  But it seems to me that the

         24  police are already responding, as you indicated, the

         25  precincts themselves, are responding anyway.  And
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          2  are the police just wasting time giving out

          3  summonses to kids who don't have ID?  Just to

          4  justify their existence.  That's a question  --

          5  there's the money.  It's a question does the money

          6  justify what they're doing?  And that's a question

          7  this Council should look at very closely.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Okay. Well my

          9  experience in my district seems to be that the

         10  harassment that's going on of the youth and

         11  residents in public housing, are really happening

         12  not by the Housing Bureau law enforcement unit, but

         13  by the regular NYPD. So that's why I asked the

         14  question.  Thank you.

         15                 MR. ANNUNZIATO: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you for

         17  your testimony. The next panel will be of four

         18  people, but each one will be limited to two minutes.

         19    It's hard to read some of the writing.  Lisa

         20  Burriss.  Jeffry  --  could be Soloman.  Al Lewis.

         21  And Agnes Rivera.  Please all take your seats up

         22  front.  And each will have two minutes to be heard.

         23                 Taking the place of Jeffry,  --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Damaris Reyes in

         25  place of Jeffry Soloman.  If anyone could start, and
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          2  just please remember to identify yourself for the

          3  record.

          4                 MS. BURRISS: Hello.  I'm Lisa

          5  Burriss.  I'm Director of Organizing for PHROLES,

          6  Public Housing Residents of the Lower East Side.

          7  And the project of GOLES, Good Old Lower East Side,

          8  Incorporated.

          9                 It's an honor to be here today.

         10  PHROLES is a organization that's been in existence

         11  since 1999, and we work with public housing

         12  residents in educating them and increasing

         13  awareness.  We do this through four ways.  It's

         14  established through direct service, education and

         15  training, and grass roots organizing.             Through

         16  our direct service and grass organizing, we have

         17  often found a culture of our residents being

         18  disrespected.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Can you please

         20  move the microphone closer?  Thank you.

         21                 MS. BURRISS: Oh, okay.  Sorry.  We

         22  found a culture of our residents being disrespected

         23  in many facets.  Whether it be direct service

         24  through policing, or through the media.  And I'm

         25  here today to talk about the police in our
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          2  developments.  And if they are effective.

          3                 I feel that today we are moving

          4  farther and farther away from community policing.

          5  I've been a resident of public housing for over 25

          6  years.  I just moved out of it.  I had to leave my

          7  mother's cradle, right?  But oftentimes, when these

          8  incidents I felt secure that the police would be

          9  there, because they knew our names, they knew our

         10  parents, they knew where we were from.  And one

         11  incident, it was a resident that was had seven

         12  police, had guns at his head, and it was one police

         13  officer named Mark Martin, I still remember him.

         14  And he assisted.  And he knew the boy.  He knew

         15  where he was at, and they released him from being

         16  arrested for trespassing.  I want to work with

         17  collectively with the PSA force, and I'm going to

         18  wrap it up, and the police authority to ameliorate

         19  the already established efforts in forging these

         20  relationships with the residents and the youth, to

         21  improve them, because ultimately, we don't want

         22  people to be hurt or degraded in these processes.

         23  When they are trying to improve the quality of life

         24  and safety of public housing residents.

         25                 I have testimony that have stories
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          2  about residents that are disrespected, violated, and

          3  detained wrongfully.  This is a huge concern for me,

          4  as I mentioned, the cases that have happened before

          5  us.  We don't even want to see as in Council Member

          6  Mark Viverito's district, how 77 shots were fired in

          7  that development. That's because of the culture of

          8  public housing.  I'm here today with the hopes of

          9  improving that.  Thank you for your time.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You bring up a

         11  very good point about community policing.  And what

         12  hasn't been said, when we talk about  --  I know

         13  Legal Aid just testified about these arrests for not

         14  having ID.  The reason they're being made is because

         15  the tenants in the building are calling the police

         16  and calling their Council Members and saying, we've

         17  got a mob outside my window.  I'm trying to sleep.

         18  None of them live here.  Come get rid of them. And

         19  the police come there, and they ask for ID.  Now if

         20  the police knew who residents were and who they

         21  weren't that would go a long way to alleviate any of

         22  these problems.  Next please.

         23                 MS. BURRISS: Thank you.

         24                 MS. REYES: Hi.  My name is Damaris

         25  Reyes.  And I am actually the Executive Director of
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          2  Public Housng Residents of the Lower East Side, and

          3  Good Old Lower East Side.  And a lifelong resident

          4  of public housing.  And Council Member Vallone, as

          5  you just stated, I am here to speak about an

          6  incident that happened to me.

          7                 I have been doing community work for

          8  11 years.  I consider myself to be an upstanding

          9  citizen.  I give a lot of my free time to improving

         10  community conditions, and have dedicated my life to

         11  helping to express the voices of public housing

         12  residents. And so to me, I'm standing in my hallway,

         13  with my two neighbors, having a conversation, and

         14  being harassed by the police, and being given a

         15  summons is really, really ridiculous.

         16                 Let me just say, in August, I was

         17  about three feet away from my apartment door, in my

         18  pajamas, talking to my two girlfriends who live on

         19  the same floor.  Because that is what development

         20  life is about.  We know our neighbors.  We open our

         21  doors.  We talk to each other.  We stand in the

         22  hallway.  We stand in the lobby, and we know each

         23  other, and that's how we communicate.  And the

         24  police came, I was smoking a cigarette.  That is

         25  correct.  Right?  There are no signs.  I'm three
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          2  feet away from my apartment door.  I was not given a

          3  warning.  The police came. They were rude.  They did

          4  not identify themselves.  They asked us for ID.  We

          5  went into our apartments, they put their foot in our

          6  doors, they wouldn't let us lock our doors.  It was

          7  a very disrespectful, degrading experience, that I

          8  don't think I should have to be subject to.

          9                 I have seen the police doing vertical

         10  patrols in the past.  They have also, at those

         11  times, not been so friendly.  But never, never have

         12  they given a summons.  So giving us a summons for

         13  smoking, what we should have gotten, was a warning.

         14  What NYCHA should do is put signs in the buildings

         15  that say that smoking is not permitted in the

         16  hallways.  If I walk to my incinerator, well it's

         17  not an incinerator anymore, my garbage chute, which

         18  is about 20 feet from my apartment door, and I don't

         19  have ID, and they're doing a vertical patrol, will I

         20  be stopped?  Will they make me give them ID?  Will

         21  they come to my apartment door?  Will they prevent

         22  me from entering?

         23                 Now as a result, I am  --  on

         24  November 28th, I am going to trial for this summons.

         25    Because I don't believe that I am guilty of
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          2  standing in front of my apartment door, with my

          3  neighbors, and having to be disrespected.  And this

          4  is part of the problem.  And I know that I have two

          5  minutes, but I want to say that my building alone, I

          6  have at least 10 people who have come to me and have

          7  said, while walking out of the building after

          8  visiting someone, while entering the building after

          9  visiting someone, I have been stopped by the police,

         10  escorted back to the apartment, to ask the tenant if

         11  I was truly in that apartment.  Asked for ID, all

         12  kinds of tactics that really just aggravate the

         13  relationship between the police and the community.

         14  And that's really what we want to focus on.  We are

         15  not against you know, police presence that is for

         16  the benefit of the residents, and keeping people

         17  safe. But we are against a culture of harassment and

         18  we are against you know, relationships that the

         19  residents don't see as helpful.  Now when the police

         20  come, a lot of our young people, and you know, folks

         21  like myself, the first thing that we do is we sort

         22  of twinge, and we're like, oh God, what are they

         23  here for now?

         24                 And that is not productive.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Let me ask you a
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          2  question. We're not going into the smoking thing,

          3  because I'm sure your neighbors would disagree about

          4  that.  But how would you  --  most of the problems

          5  in these developments are caused by people who don't

          6  belong in the development.  How would you suggest

          7  that police handle that problem differently than

          8  asking for ID or doing what they are now?  I'm sure

          9  there are some  --  no wait.  I want to hear this.

         10                 MS. REYES: I think that you know, one

         11  alternative is to have a private security force,

         12  that is on the development grounds, that does get to

         13  know the residents.  That know who the neighbors

         14  are.  If the police  --  I mean, through the

         15  testimony here of the Chief, if they're constantly

         16  rotating, how do they get to know anyone?  So I

         17  guess community policing could be one.  A private

         18  security force could be another.  And while you know

         19  personally, I have my own opinions about security

         20  cameras, I do think that they are somewhat a

         21  deterrent in crime.  And if we had them in some of

         22  the developments, and we knew that certain other

         23  rights were being protected, then I would be a

         24  proponent for that.

         25                 MR. LEWIS: My name is Al Lewis. I'm a
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          2  member of Community Board Third.  I'm a resident of

          3  Wagner Houses in East Harlem.  I am also an ex-

          4  officer and I am here today to testify on the

          5  problems of the police harassment in public housing.

          6

          7                 Not too long ago, I was outside

          8  playing cards with some friends of mine when a

          9  police officer came up to tell us we needed to go

         10  upstairs.  I was absolutely doing nothing wrong, and

         11  there was no reason for me to not to be out side my

         12  own building, minding my own business.  I was told

         13  that I --  oh, my god, well I'll get it together  --

         14    excuse me, bear with me people.  I was told  --  I

         15  told him that I wasn't going upstairs because I

         16  wasn't doing nothing wrong.  He told me that if I

         17  didn't go upstairs that I would be arrested.  I told

         18  him he better arrest me then, because I wasn't going

         19  upstairs.  And I wasn't going upstairs.

         20                 I'm a grown man.  I asked the kids

         21   --  I have kids older than this officer.  Older

         22  than this police officer.  I couldn't believe this

         23  man.  The police in my neighborhood are harassing

         24  and intimidating people, and this is becoming from

         25  an ex officer who was right now fighting for his
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          2  rights against unjust system.

          3                 Is this what NYCHA is paying the

          4  Police Department $73 million for?  This is why

          5  NYCHA is in so much debt.  NYCHA is misusing funds

          6  by paying Police Department for so- called

          7  protection.  Why should we lower- income residents

          8  be forced to pay extra rent fees because of NYCHA

          9  mismanaging its funds incorrectly. They should be

         10  paying for their mistakes.  Why should we pay for

         11  their mistakes?

         12                 As a member of the City Council, I am

         13  asking you to look into the police harassments near

         14  public housing.  Look into why the Police Department

         15  is getting $73 million to harass people.           I

         16  mean, I heard these officers here, and their

         17  testimony.  They're playing a hell of a politics

         18  game that is affecting all of us.  And I think

         19  something has to be done before it gets too late for

         20  every last one of us.  This is going to be costly to

         21  all of us in the long run.  Believe what I'm telling

         22  you. I can see the tensions in the neighborhood.

         23  It's getting fearsful (sic), believe me.  And I

         24  think something has to be done about the Police

         25  Department and the harassment that they're giving
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          2  these people.  It's unfair, and I just can't believe

          3  the Police Department is actually doing this.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.  We have

          5  some questions from Council Members for you.

          6  Council Member James.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: You know, I

          8  feel your pain, and your passion.  I saw it last

          9  night on the streets, where the tension was very,

         10  very high.  And there was again, almost a riot in

         11  Downtown Brooklyn.  And there is this culture and

         12  this misperception of residents of public housing

         13  that you're less than human.  And therefore, you

         14  should not be respected under the law. And that is

         15  the problem.

         16                 This hearing has turned into a

         17  referendum on you know, how police officers police

         18  public housing residents.  And it's a very, very

         19  serious problem, and I think it goes beyond just

         20  basic training.  It really goes to the culture of

         21  NYPD.  And I defend NYPD.  My sister happens to be a

         22  police officer.  But it's the treatment of residents

         23  of public housing.

         24                 And so my question to the panel is,

         25  in all of your respective developments, is there a
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          2  tenant patrol?  And what is the relationship between

          3  your tenant patrol, your tenant association, and the

          4  local precinct and/or PSA?

          5                 MR. LEWIS: Well they're claiming

          6  they're doing these vertical patrols.  The time they

          7  come out and do vertical patrols, it's like at

          8  night, I mean about six or seven, when the tenants

          9  association, you know, is on duty.  I mean, they

         10  here in that building so quick you wouldn't believe.

         11    I sat out there many times watching them.  You

         12  see?  And I mean, so much is going down in housing,

         13  and with the Police Department and everything, this

         14  is why I'm unemployed.  Because they don't want

         15  nobody in there who is going to do the job right.

         16  Believe me.  I became a threat to them.           COUNCIL

         17  MEMBER JAMES: What would be your recommendations?

         18                 MR. LEWIS: Well, like she was saying.

         19    They need to put some officers out there who have

         20  close contact with the neighbors, with the tenants

         21  in the community.  That way, they would know what's

         22  what and what's really going on in that community.

         23                 Without that, they moving around and

         24  changing officers you know, so much, they ain't

         25  going to know nothing.  It's going to be just like
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          2  it is right now, a lot of people are going to get

          3  mislead, you know, get misinformation and

          4  everything.  We need somebody who is going to work

          5  with the people in the community. And what have you.

          6    I mean, it's just the only way.  I mean, this

          7  thing has been brewing up for a long time.  I think

          8  it's come to a head.  And when it comes to the head,

          9  I feel sorry.  I'm going to tell you, it's going to

         10  get worse.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And I think you

         12  know, consistent with the previous testimony of the

         13  representative from the Legal Aid Society, as a

         14  former Legal Aid attorney, I recognize that

         15  oftentimes police officers use disorderly conduct as

         16  a means of harassment.  And now, what I'm seeing, as

         17  was testified earlier, that they're using this

         18  charge of disorderly conduct as a ruse to evict

         19  individuals.

         20                 MR. LEWIS: Oh yes. Oh yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: It's happening

         22  in Downtown Brooklyn, particularly since we sit on

         23  very valuable property, and they're  --

         24                 MR. LEWIS: I've seen them destroy

         25  families.                     COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:
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          2  And they're modernizing it. And so there is this

          3  effort afoot to start evicting people using the

          4  charge of disorderly conduct.  So the rest of the

          5  panel, I'm sorry.

          6                 MS. REYES: The question that you

          7  asked about suggestion.  I mean, I think the ones

          8  that I gave before are some first starts.  But I

          9  think also that there should be some conversations

         10  with people in public housing, to see what it is,

         11  you know, what kind of alternatives they think that

         12  we can put together.

         13                 And I also just want to say that yes,

         14  there is you know, a stereotype of culture, a

         15  perception of people who live in public housing.

         16  But I think that you know, part of the issue is that

         17  there is a perception and a stereotype about low

         18  income people of color period.  And that a majority

         19  of those people live in public housing, so it

         20  definitely makes us a target.

         21                 When I went to court, to answer the

         22  summons, I have to say that about 98 percent of the

         23  people who were there answering tickets, were people

         24  of color.  Mostly African- American males, and I was

         25  really upset about that.  And I felt very
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          2  disrespected that this is the target, right?  And it

          3  seems like it's a very targeted effort, and so I

          4  just wanted to raise that.

          5                 Again, it's culture life.  It seems

          6   --  you know, we want the police to be there.  We

          7  want them to be there to solve crimes.  We want them

          8  to be there for safety purposes.  But you know, we

          9  have to question whether or not they are there to

         10  change the culture of development life.  And there

         11  is a particular culture that exists in public

         12  housing, and you know, is this what this is about?

         13  Is this about control?  What will be next?  Will we

         14  have cameras in our apartments?  I mean, if we can't

         15  enter our buildings, we can't walk to the store, I

         16  mean, we have been approached by many, many, many

         17  people.

         18                 And another thing to mention is, most

         19  of those people are not here today because they are

         20  afraid to come forward. They are afraid to challenge

         21  sometimes, the officers.  You know, and if they was

         22  a better relationship where people felt that they

         23  was security in being able to say, officer, I live

         24  here, or I'm doing this.  Or officer, wait a minute,

         25  maybe we wouldn't have you know, so many summonses,
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          2  or maybe we wouldn't have so many people arrested.

          3  Lisa recently worked with someone who is an A

          4  student, and spent 24 hours in jail, because he

          5  didn't have ID.

          6                 MS. BURRISS: I also want to just

          7  underscore, just trainings, like culture trainings,

          8  culture awareness trainings for the police officers

          9  during an interaction.  I think that would help.

         10  And as they talked about the Impact zones, they

         11  operate capriciously throughout the City, that

         12  doesn't allow you know, a better forging of the

         13  relationships with the police officers.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Community

         15  policing obviously, is the key.  There was two

         16  officers last night who were raised in public

         17  housing.  They went a long way to defray a lot of

         18  the tension last night.  They knew a lot of the

         19  residents.  They knew them by first name.  They knew

         20  their mamas, their grandma, their grandpa.  That

         21  cooled off so many individuals, just based on that

         22  conversation, and just based upon that relationship.

         23                 MS. BURRISS: There are great police

         24  officers that service the City.  And they're amazing

         25  officers that dedicate their lives.  And we're not
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          2  talking about them today.  We're talking about the

          3  people that taint their image, and make us believe

          4  that this is a relationship that can't be improved,

          5  when it can.

          6                 MR. LEWIS: So investing money into

          7  cameras and all that.  They need invest money into

          8  these officers, and what have to do to get to know

          9  the neighborhood.  And get to know the people in the

         10  neighborhood.  They will save billions of dollars.

         11  Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Don't go

         13  anywhere.  We have one more Council Member with

         14  questions for this panel.  Council Member Brewer.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I'll be very

         16  quick.  Thank you very much.  I represent Amsterdam

         17  Houses Addition, Harborview, Weiss Towers, and so

         18  on.  And I am old enough to remember PSA, and say

         19  very strongly that when the merger took place,

         20  Transit, PSA, and PD, it was a mistake.  And that I

         21  feel very strongly that the PSA was a place that we

         22  could all look to for input as to not only knowledge

         23  of the developments, but also just knowledge of that

         24  kind of policing.  And it was the right way to go.

         25                 So in my area, because the PSA Six is
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          2  very far north from Amsterdam, it would take them a

          3  long time to get to the development.  So that wasn't

          4  working.  And so the local precinct has now assigned

          5  six officers trained culturally, some of whom grew

          6  up in housing, to work in Amsterday and Amsterdam

          7  Addition.  And that works.  So what I'm saying to

          8  you is that you  --  do you agree  --  I'm just

          9  asking  --  that the PSA model made sense?  And do

         10  you agree that either the Police Department should

         11  reinvent, reinvigorate that model and/or culturally

         12  sensitive officers from the precinct who can be

         13  assigned just to the developments?  Do you think

         14  that that would go a long way for the  --

         15                 MR. LEWIS: I think that would go a

         16  long way for  --

         17                 MS BURRISS: Definitely.  I was raised

         18  in Melatic (phonetic) Houses, and there was a

         19  precinct located directly under it.  My brother had

         20  fireworks, and he was setting off fireworks, and the

         21  police officers knew him, they just tried to scare

         22  him. They called my mother up the stairs, and you

         23  know, he's six years older than me, so just knowing

         24  that that worked, that helped was definitely great.

         25  And the cultural trainings, I think, would
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          2  definitely assist with the issues that we have.

          3  Because there's always this issue of funding that we

          4    --  you know, that's the big elephant in the room

          5  as well.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: It's not a

          7  funding issue.

          8                 MS. BURRISS: Oh, it isn't.  Okay.

          9  Well then these programs should be allocated.  And I

         10  think they should ameliorate efforts that they have,

         11  like they have where the PSA Four in our district,

         12  they have a Youth Passport Program.  And this allows

         13  youth under the age of 16 to be identified, you

         14  know, it shows where they live at, and your names.

         15  If they  --  yes  --  put more effort into those

         16  programs, and integrate them throughout the City,

         17  that would work, because then the kids, the youth

         18  would have ID, valid ID, and also it would help

         19  build good relationship.

         20                 Also, PSA  --  PAL  --  used to do

         21  like play basketball with the youth, and partake in

         22  sports activities. Increasing those activities as

         23  well will help you know, with residents and police.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 MR. LEWIS: Thank you.

          3                 MS. BURRISS: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Excuse me.  Ms.

          5  Burriss, you mentioned earlier that you had

          6  incidents of harassment and specifics in the

          7  district.  And can you provide that to me and to the

          8  Committee?

          9                 MS. BURRISS: Yes.  I could definitely

         10  provide that for you and the Committee.  And some

         11  instances, we have the officers badge numbers and

         12  names as well.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: And let me ask

         14  you.  Are you aware whether these officers are from

         15  the precinct or are they from the Housing Bureau?

         16                 MS. BURRISS: Most of the time these

         17  interactions happen with youth.  And when the youth

         18  asks these questions, sometimes they're not very

         19  well answered.  So there's no real dichotomy as to

         20  when they are approached, if this is a PSA Four, or

         21  if it's the precincts.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: And these

         23  incidents did happen on development grounds?

         24                 MS. BURRISS: Definitely.  They

         25  happened on the development grounds.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Okay.

          3                 MS. REYES: Jeffry Soloman is here,

          4  and actually, I don't know if you can put him back

          5  on to testify, but he has a lot of stories that I

          6  think would be really important to share with the

          7  panel.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: We will, along

          9  with the other panel members.  Thank you all for

         10  your testimony.

         11                 MS. BURRISS: Thank you very, very

         12  much for your time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes, thank you

         14  for coming down. The last panel will be Anne

         15  Johnson, Joseph Garber, Jeffry Soloman, Theresa

         16  Coles- Ragin, and Carmen Wynder.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Whenever you're

         18  ready, who ever would like to start, please identify

         19  yourself for the record and then give your

         20  testimony.

         21                 MS. JOHNSON: Okay.  My name is Anne

         22  Johnson.  I'm a 37-year resident of Alfred E. Smith

         23  Houses.  I want to say just one thing first, that

         24  from 1988 to 1990, I was the Chairperson of

         25  Community Board Three.  At the time of the Thompkins
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          2  Square Park Police riot.  And I went to the Mayor to

          3  save the commander's job. I do not hate the police.

          4  I want that understood.

          5                 I know this is a public hearing about

          6  public safety in housing, and I want to mention one

          7  thing that has not been mentioned today, and that is

          8  the Police Department's refusal to open Park Row

          9  back up to the traffic.  Because it is a terrible

         10   -- it presents terrible safety issues to the

         11  residents of Smith Houses, who not only have to

         12  cross the street, taking their lives in their hands,

         13  but the impact that the traffic is having on asthma

         14  rates in our neighborhood has been tremendous.  And

         15  something really needs to be done about that.

         16                 The biggest problem that I see is

         17  that the residents of NYCHA simply don't trust the

         18  police.  I thought NYCHA was paying the New York

         19  Police Department a million dollars a year, or, a

         20  hundred million dollars a year, I didn't know they

         21  had cut it down to $73 million.  But we can't get

         22  the police to come when we call them unless we say

         23  someone has a gun.  And I called the Fifth precinct,

         24  and they referred me to PSA Four, even though the

         25  departments I thought were joined.  And of course,
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          2  PSA Four is a lot further away from me than the

          3  Fifth precinct.

          4                 There are several incidents that I

          5  can tell you about of that I know personally of

          6  people who have either been murdered or one person

          7  was  --  the elevator button on his floor didn't

          8  work, so he went downstairs to the floor beneath him

          9  to push the elevator button, and the cops came and

         10  gave him a summons. It's that kind of thing that

         11  goes on.  Simply harassed.  People are just harassed

         12  terribly.  I had to get a lawyer for one of my

         13  neighbor friends, because she was harassed because

         14  her grandson did something and he isn't even living

         15  with her, and yet they barge into her house and put

         16  her on probation for five years.  This kind of thing

         17  has got to stop.  It would not happen in a white

         18  neighborhood.  All of the people whose incidents

         19  I've listed here have all been Black.  Isn't that

         20  interesting?

         21                 If something isn't done about

         22  training police officers to be a little bit more

         23  culturally sensitive, nothing is going to work.

         24  Nothing.  People are arrested for sitting in their

         25  own parks, walking in their own hallways, having
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          2  friends you know, over.  Which is you know, the

          3  right of anybody.  And yet we are right across the

          4  street from Murray Bergstraum High School, and the

          5  kids  --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Ms. Johnson,

          7  could you wrap up?

          8                 MS. JOHNSON: Okay.  I will.  But when

          9  you know, they're over there doing all kinds of

         10  things and police never do anything.  They just only

         11  do it to the residents of Smith Houses.

         12                 We also know that the police allow

         13  certain places to be left alone, so that they can

         14  keep the drug sales activity contained.  But the

         15  projects should not be one of those places.

         16                 But let's face facts.  Education for

         17  youth needs to be improved.  And until NYCHA demands

         18  that the settlement houses and the projects have

         19  better youth programs, job training, anti drop out,

         20  et cetera, the crimes will continue.  Prevention is

         21  much better than arrest and conviction.  Thank you.

         22                 DR. SOLOMAN: Good afternoon.  I'm Dr.

         23  Jeffry Soloman.  I'm a psychologists.  I've worked

         24  with youth on the Lower East Side.  I work with the

         25  women from Goals and PHROLES. I'd like to read a
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          2  statement I prepared.

          3                 Having worked with young people on

          4  the Lower East Side over the past six years, I have

          5  had many opportunities to interact with the

          6  officers, detectives, community affairs, youth

          7  service, and commanding officers of the Ninth

          8  precinct, and PSA Four.  I can state without any

          9  reservation that the police have always proved

         10  cooperative and helpful in carrying out their duties

         11  and in fostering, maintaining, and developing strong

         12  relationships with community residents.  Yet, in

         13  spite of the best intention and efforts of all

         14  parties, friction among community residents,

         15  especially adolescents and the police, remains

         16  problematic.

         17                 A major cause of this unfortunate

         18  state of affairs stems from the lack of job

         19  opportunities and educational advantages for many

         20  young people, who feel they have nowhere to turn.

         21  This leads to an unfortunate choice to make easy

         22  money through drug dealing, stealing bicycles and

         23  petty crime.  The police in turn, feel compelled to

         24  deal harshly with both real and perceived

         25  transgressions.  As a result, the youth in the
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          2  community perceive the police as having the sole,

          3  single- minded purpose of making things hard on

          4  them.

          5                 The police see the kids as wanting to

          6  do nothing other than make things hard for them.

          7  The drug dealers exploit this antagonism and

          8  alienation to their own advantage, and this makes

          9  for a volatile mix.

         10                 It behooves us to remember that most

         11  of the young people who get tangled up in crime,

         12  drugs, and the juvenile and criminal justices

         13  systems, live in public housing at, or below, the

         14  poverty level.   Children, adolescents, and adults

         15  living in poverty have statistically higher

         16  prevalence of mental illness, lower levels of

         17  educational achievement, higher incidents of

         18  undiagnosed and untreated learning disabilities, and

         19  diminished access to quality health care.  They

         20  often lack the internal resources an external

         21  supports that will allow them to find and keep jobs,

         22  and to access and succeed at higher and vocational

         23  educational programs.

         24                 The developmental challenges of

         25  adolescents present --  which compounded by the
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          2  ecological stressors of growing up in poverty

          3  present unique challenges to community service,

          4  police, service providers and families.  Any forum

          5  such as this that fosters and encourages the

          6  development of dialogue and discourse will help to

          7  bridge the gaps between community residents and

          8  those working to provide a safe and nurturing

          9  environment.

         10                 I'd just like to relate one incident

         11  of a young man who is learning disabled, dropped out

         12  of school, turned to small time drug dealing, and

         13  going to a meeting with me where we're working on

         14  tutoring, reading, specifically, and he was

         15  approached by undercover officers  --  I believe

         16  Narcotics  --  who told him to watch his step or

         17  they would break his ribs.  So after this encounter,

         18  we went to the police station, and I spoke to the

         19  commanding officer of the Ninth precinct, and we

         20  arranged a meeting.  And I'd just like to read, if I

         21  may, the brief description of that meeting as well.

         22                 On March 21, 2006, members of the New

         23  York City Police Department and staff working in

         24  youth development met at the Compost Plaza Community

         25  Center to  --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: How brief is

          3  this description? Because I've go the Fire

          4  Department outside waiting on this room. Is it

          5  brief?

          6                 MR. SOLOMAN: A minute.   --  Met at

          7  the Compost Community Center to discuss common

          8  concerns by we who work with young people in the

          9  community.  The discussion focused on ways in which

         10  to constructively engage adolescents in activities

         11  that benefit them individually as well as the

         12  community at large. After sharing introductions, we

         13  spoke about the large number of incidents involving

         14  young people in and around the Compost Plaza Housing

         15  Development.  We then discussed possible ways to

         16  engage law enforcement workers in activities that

         17  will promote better relationships with those

         18  teenagers who have not made good choices in terms of

         19  school, work, and leisure time activities.

         20                 Some of the things we came up with

         21  were: Engaging young people in positive community

         22  service projects, working with DMV to help kids get

         23  valid State IDs, going to the library to get library

         24  cards, working with the precinct to plan and

         25  coordinate safety concerns for center events such as
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          2  dances, planning trips, getting the kids to

          3  recognize that youth workers and law enforcement,

          4  working together with the kids' best interests at

          5  heart.

          6                 At this meeting, we had the CO of the

          7  Ninth, the CO of PSA Four, detectives, undercover

          8  cops, youth service officers, so there's definitely

          9  a concerted effort there, but just accessing that

         10  remains a problem.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.  Mr.

         12  Garber.

         13                 MR. GARBER: Good afternoon Chair

         14  Vallone, and Members of the Committee and members of

         15  the public.  My name is Joseph Garber.  I'm

         16  testifying here this afternoon in two separate

         17  roles.  As the Corresponding Secretary of the Civil

         18  Service Merit Council, and the newly elected

         19  Executive Vice President of the Citizens Police

         20  Academy Alumni Association.

         21                 At the outset let me say that we

         22  support Intro. No. 96-A, and we also support the

         23  increase of uniformed members of the service and the

         24  appropriate compliment of civilian members of the

         25  service in the Housing Bureau.  However, there has
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          2  to be a greater restructuring of the Housing Bureau.

          3    First of all, I would suggest that this Committee

          4  get from the Police Department a copy of the

          5  organization guide of the Police Department, where

          6  you'll see a delineation precinct by precinct, PSA

          7  by PSA, of boundary lines in the developments, under

          8  the respective boundary lines.

          9                 In addition, I have a copy of the

         10  merger planning book from September of 1994, which

         11  was officially signed on September 9, 1994, as per

         12  Mayor's Executive Order 13, under former Mayor

         13  Giuliani.  Number one, this merger book is not being

         14  followed.  I suggest you get it.  I suggest both

         15  Committees review it.  I'll be glad to make it

         16  available for you if you want to photocopy it.

         17                 Let me just try to answer some

         18  questions that I heard.  The concept of vertical

         19  patrol has started ever since the Housing Authority

         20  Police was founded on December 15, 1952.  The base

         21  of patrol was interior vertical patrol.  It's only

         22  when Ben Ward, Ben Ward, the late Ben Ward is the

         23  one that established the Police Service Areas.

         24  Prior to that time, the officers were assigned to

         25  individual record rooms.
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          2                 When I was growing up as a little kid

          3  in Douglass Houses, I knew all the cops, they knew

          4  me.  And that made me interested in government and

          5  law enforcement.  All right?  You don't have that

          6  rapport with the residents.  I remember once I was

          7   --  I must have been six years old, I was in the

          8  grass.  The officer came up to my parents house and

          9  said, your son was in the grass.  This is gone.  You

         10  used to have the ID cards of older residents in the

         11  record room, where the officer could check.  It is

         12  gone.  Okay?  I travel around in my course as a

         13  Housing Authority Resident Leader, I've been in all

         14  five boroughs.  There's a problem.  The police

         15  officers of all races do not know how to speak to

         16  people.  I don't know where  --  Chief Robinson, may

         17  he rest in peace, he told me, when he was in the

         18  academy, they would talk one way.  Well when they go

         19  out in the street, there's peer pressure maybe to

         20  talk with "F" and "B" and it's not working, all

         21  right?

         22                 I've been disrespected and I know

         23  where to use the system.  I call CCRB and IAB, okay?

         24                 I want to just speak about Four

         25  Auburn Place a moment.  Because this came up.  Four
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          2  Auburn Place used to be, under the old housing

          3  police, prior, way prior to the merger, it was a

          4  subdivision of lieutenants.  At Four Auburn Place, I

          5  remember that well, it was then called 43 Houses.  I

          6  remember there was a scandal with the cops were  --

          7  they electronically put the rings in from the call

          8  boxes.  Anyway, that's how far back I go, when the

          9  Myrtle Avenue L was there.

         10                 The housing police was a fantastic

         11  job, was a fantastic organization.  I wrote my

         12  Masters pieces on the housing police.  But

         13  unfortunately, it's not a housing police anymore.

         14  It is not a housing police.  You have captains who

         15  are  --  PSA commanders who have never worked as a

         16  housing cop.  I had to make some complaints against

         17  the captain.  Could you imagine this? There's very

         18  disrespect.  I would suggest a study.  I've spoken

         19  this when you had your budget hearings on public

         20  safety.  We need either the National Association of

         21  Black Law Enforcement Executives, the International

         22  Association Chief of Police, Police Executive

         23  Research Foundation, or other American Society of

         24  Public Administration to do an analysis, is the

         25  merger working?  You can use this book and other
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          2  documents.  I recall Tony Weiner, when he was Chair

          3  of the Subcommittee on Public Safety, ask Ruben

          4  Franco, all the stuff to say that you have to merge.

          5    He says I believe you don't have to merge.  Okay?

          6  The merger is not working.  It's not only police

          7  interaction, there's no management techniques.

          8                 Commissioner Brackman (phonetic) told

          9  me, had he remained, he would have finished the

         10  merger.  The merger is not completed.  It is not a

         11  merger.  I'll be glad to make any of this available.

         12    I don't want to take up time, but it's not

         13  working. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you Mr.

         15  Garber.  And congratulations on your recent

         16  appointment.

         17                 MR. GARBER: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Ms. Wynder.

         19  Thank you for waiting around.  You are the last

         20  testimony today. Usually we save Mr. Garber for

         21  last, because he's a hard act to follow.  But you

         22  snuck in on the end there.

         23                 MS. WYNDER: I'm going to be short and

         24  to the point. I'm the TA President at Astoria

         25  Housing.  And I think my development  --  my
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          2  personal opinion  --  we're not really that bad.

          3  You know.  I say the hoods out there, they're like

          4  punks compared to other surrounding neighborhood.

          5  But we're still harassed.  This ticket- writing

          6  thing, writing tickets for kids sitting on the

          7  ground.  They just find anything.  They want to walk

          8  up to you and harass you with.  Or write you a

          9  ticket.

         10                 This takes time out of you go to

         11  answer these tickets.  That mother, maybe she's the

         12  only working person, she got to take a day off for

         13  work to go sit there and get there to find out that

         14  it's been dismissed, when the officer already knows

         15  it's going to be dismissed.  He just writes on there

         16    --  they did it to my daughter.  We thought we

         17  were getting a ticket for moving the car.  You know,

         18  in the car.  Traffic ticket.  Come to find out, he

         19  wrote a ticket for her being down there three

         20  buildings down, off the street, in the development,

         21  nothing.  You know, we go to court, it's dismissed.

         22  The judge is asking, where are these stupid tickets

         23  coming from?  But that's it.  I want to say, if

         24  something do erupt, it's going to be a domino

         25  effect, because each development is going to copy.
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          2  And it's going to come down.  So it's something to

          3  think about.  If there is an over  --  you know,

          4  they do that.  Then they all going to start doing

          5  it.  It's all going to fall like dominos.  That's my

          6  opinion.  That's the way I feel about it.  Because

          7  all of them are tense.  They waiting for something

          8  to get off on.  So if that happens  --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.  And

         10  as you know, you were in my office last week, if

         11  there is a specific instance, or if there's a

         12  problem, I want you in my office and I will be down

         13  there at the precinct with you.  Okay?

         14                 I misspoke.  There is one last

         15  witness.  We've apparently bored her granddaughter

         16  into being quiet.  But it's Agnes Rivera.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Just one quick

         18  question for Mr. Garber.  You said that there is a

         19  reorganization guide?

         20                 MR. GARBER: Yes.  The organization

         21  guide of the NYPD, its one of the four components of

         22  the department manual.  It explains in great

         23  delineation the boundary lines of every precinct and

         24  the boundary lines of the PSA.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Okay.  Mr.
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          2  Garber, is that in this merger book that you were

          3  referring to?

          4                 MR. GARBER: No.  It's separate.  The

          5  merger book has just the PSA delin --  You get a

          6  copy of the Department Manual with the organization

          7  guide.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Okay.  If we

          9  don't happen to get a copy, you will hear from me,

         10  so you can give us a copy.

         11                 MR. GARBER: I can tell you after the

         12  meeting is over, I'll give you exact numbers who to

         13  contact.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 MR. GARBER: But I have this other

         17  book.  I just want to put for the record, Police

         18  Practices and Civil Rights of New York City, that

         19  was produced by U.S. Commission on Civil Rights in

         20  the year 2000.  And I think it's worthwhile reading.

         21

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Please push that

         24  mike over to Ms. Rivera.

         25                 MS. RIVERA: It's okay.  Thank you.
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          2  My name is Agnes Rivera.  I'm a leader at Community

          3  Voices Heard.  And a resident of Wagner Houses in

          4  East Harlem.  I'm thankful for the opportunity to

          5  testify before this Committee of Public Safety and

          6  the Subcommittee of Public Housing, on serious

          7  issues of police harassment in NYCHA developments.

          8                 My son Christopher was about 16 years

          9  old, and he was harassed by police officer, and

         10  pushed against a wall because of suspiciously fitted

         11  the description of an individual who had mugged

         12  someone within the development.  My son and myself,

         13  Francis, stepped outside to see what was the

         14  problem.  When Francis requested the description of

         15  the mugger to see if it actually fitted my son, the

         16  officer refused to give it to him.  However, we

         17  heard the description being patched through the

         18  officer's radio, and the description did not match

         19  my son at all.  They were looking for a 24- year old

         20  man that was five foot and four inches, wearing an

         21  Army jacket.  My son was 16 years old, and he was

         22  not wearing an Army jacket, and he is six foot one.

         23                 This is one story of many that I

         24  could tell you about police presence in public

         25  housing developments.  Police seems to just come to
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          2  their own conclusion about the people that live in

          3  the projects.  They think we're of lower class.  The

          4  police never felt the need to apologize for

          5  harassing my son, even though it was obvious he was

          6  not the mugger they were looking for.

          7                 The problem with police harassment is

          8  made even worse when considering that NYCHA is

          9  paying the Police Department $73 million for extra

         10  protection we're not getting at any sort of

         11  protection.  We're getting harassed, considering the

         12  massive deficit that NYCHA is currently in, we could

         13  be using this money for so many other things.  This

         14  money could be going to things, housing residents

         15  actually need, like better maintenance, repairs, and

         16  I'm talking about operating repairs, getting brand

         17  new pipelines, prevent flooding, water damage, and

         18  I'm talking about new elevators, so that they don't

         19  break every day, or every other day.  Simply

         20  installing cameras in our building is not going to

         21  solve the problems for public safety.  When the

         22  police officers, those supposedly meant to protect

         23  us, are harassing us.

         24                 I'm asking that the Members of the

         25  City Council reconsider the logic of paying the
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          2  public department so much money that NYCHA is just a

          3  massive deficit, and only thing the Police

          4  Department is doing is with this extra money is

          5  harassing us. There's also there was an incident in

          6  my tenant, in my building, and I was supposed to be

          7  going in my house, and I couldn't get in, because

          8  there was a humungous fight going on in the lobby,

          9  in front of the building, cameras are in the lobby,

         10  cameras are out in the building.  No one showed up.

         11  No one.  My son literally had to come out  --

         12  because I had to call him to come out and get me in.

         13    No Police Department came.  No one.  You know when

         14  they showed up? When everybody was gone.  When

         15  everybody was gone.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  You need to

         17  immediately contact your Council Member, and have us

         18  sit there with the Police Department and find out

         19  what happened.  I mean, for everyone in this room.

         20  I mean, we want to help you, and I've done that many

         21  times.  I would have the command in my office the

         22  next day, explaining exactly what happened.  And if

         23  it wasn't right, then we'll take action.  And if

         24  there was a reason, then you'll know. And you'll sit

         25  there with him.
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          2                 MS. RIVERA: But we have cameras.  You

          3  will see the damages that are being done to the

          4  mailbox.  The windows being broken.  Things that are

          5  going on that cameras are on.  And the police,

          6  someone is seeing it  --  if someone is actually

          7  observing this, then there should have been somebody

          8  there.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You're

         10  absolutely right. You're absolutely right.

         11                 MS. RIVERA: Nobody is coming.  No one

         12  is coming.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well make sure

         14  you contact the --  again, it does depend on whether

         15  it's VIPER and somebody is monitoring it, as

         16  Chairwoman is reminding me, or if it's just a

         17  regular camera, where no one looks at it until they

         18   --  but they can go find those films now and find

         19  exactly who is responsible.

         20                 And all of us up here understand that

         21  there are some bad police officers.  And you know,

         22  there are 37,000.  If one percent of them is bad,

         23  that's 370 out there that need to be weeded out, and

         24  punished.  So we know they're out there.  And if you

         25  ever see one, come to us.  We're here to help.
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          2                 MS. RIVERA: Well one of the police

          3  officers that was on there was actually a relative,

          4  and because of our own relation, he actually asked

          5  to be changed to another unit and so that way he

          6  wouldn't be called preference or anything.  But

          7  actually I know police officers that are really

          8  great and all.  And I kind of miss the police

          9  officers that I knew.  That I could relate with, and

         10  talk with.  And have some form of a friendship with.

         11    Not a personal friend, but an awareness

         12  friendship.  And that's not happening for our youth.

         13    Because right now, my kids are really like really

         14  towards police officers because of that incident.

         15  And he was only waiting for the elevator to go up

         16  and visit his girlfriend, who is now his fiancee.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, well thank

         18  you all for waiting around to testify.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ; And Ms. Rivera,

         20  we'll pass that information on to your Council

         21  Person so that they could follow up with you and

         22  with the PSA and the precinct.

         23                 MS. RIVERA: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I would like to

         25  thank Council Member Mendez for all of her help and
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          2  being so dedicated to this issue.  I look forward to

          3  working with you again, to continue to do oversight

          4  on this issue.  Anyone who wants to provide us with

          5  information, that may not have got a chance to, make

          6  sure you can do that.  And we thank you all for

          7  waiting around all day.  And Leticia, especially,

          8  because not even a member of this Committee. And yet

          9  still speaks to Mr. Garber.  No.  But yet still hung

         10  around until the very end to hear testimonies.  So

         11   --  you have to hand in your testimony, the meeting

         12  has been closed.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MENDEZ: Theresa Ragin.

         14  She was called before.  We officially just closed

         15  the meeting. We had called your name before.  I'll

         16  certainly sit and listen to you, but you can hand in

         17  your testimony later and we'll add it to the record.

         18    Okay?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you all.

         20  This meeting is adjourned.

         21                 (Hearing concluded at 1:25 p.m.)
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